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Financial and Statistical Highlights

(See Notes 7 and 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

- Compound

{In millions, except common stockidata Growth
and financial percentages and ratips) 2002¢ 20014 2000 19997 1998¢ Rate
OPERATING DATA
Revenues $4,136.4 $3,689.8 $3,3298 $2,894.1 $1,907.9 21.3%
Income from operations 780.0 580.0 2827 481.0 287.8 28.3%
Income from continuing operatiens before

income taxes and minority interests 535.9 3474 17.8 359.6 203.3 27.4%
Income/(loss) from continuing operations 324.6 208.4 (11.3) 2195 121.7 27.8%
income/(loss) before extraordindry items and cumufative

effect of change in accounting principle 326.2 209.0 (11.3) 2195 121.7 28.0%
Net incomey({loss) : 235.0 209.0 {12.1) 208.5 102.0 23.2%
COMMON STOCK DATA _
Earnings/{loss) per share—diluted

From continuing operations 2.86 1.80 {0.09) 1.71 1.19 24.6%

Net income/({less) 2.07 1.81 {0.10) 1.62 1.00 19:8%
FINANCIAL POSITION
Total assets 6,350.0 6,128.6 5,166.1 4,766.8 3,286.3 17.9%
Long-term debt 3.763.1 3,719.4 2,835.8 2,540.3 1,999.4 17.1%
Stockholders’ equity 1.471.0 1,374.1 1,269.7 1,486.3 851.4 14.6%
CASH FLOWS
Provided by operating activities 738.6 7730 547.6 490.1 2979 25.5%
Property EBITDA® 1,149.9 980.0 886.5 792.9 512.6 22.4%
Investments in land, buildings, riverboats and

equipment additions 368.8 529.8 4214 340.5 140.4 21.3%
FINANCIAL PERCENTAGES AND RATIOS
Return on revenues—continuing- 1.8% 5.6% (0.3)% 7.6% 6.4%
Return on average invested capital® 8.6% 1.3% 2.9% 8.1% 8.0%
Return on average equity® 22.3% 15.5% (0.8)% 15.5% 15.3%
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges® 29 2.1 22 2.7 24

fa) 2002 includes $5.0 million in pietax charges for write-downs, reserves and recoveries (see Note 8), a $6.1 million charge for our exposure under a letter of credit

issued on behalf of National Airlines, Inc. and a charge of $91.2 million, net of tax benefits of $2.8 million related to a change in accounting principle (see Note 3). 2002
also includes the financial results of Jazz Casino Company LLC from the date of our acquisition of a majority ownership interest on June 7, 2002.

{b} 2001 includes $22.5 million in pretax charges for write-downs, reserves and recoveries (see Note 8) and $26.2 million of income from dispositions of nonstrategic

assets and the settlement of a contingency related to a former affiliate. 2007 also includes the financial results of Harveys Casino Resorts from its July 31, 2001, date
of acquisition. 2001 results have been reclassified to reflect Harveys Colorado as discontinued operations.
{c) 2000 includes $220.0 million in pretax reserves for receivables not expected to be recovered from JCC Holding Company and its subsidiary, Jazz Casino Company LLC,
$6.1 million in pretax charges for other write-downs, reserves and recoveries {see Note 8) and $39.4 million in pretax write-offs and reserves for our investment in,
loans to and net estimated exposure under letters of credit issued on behalf of National Airlines, Inc. 2000 also includes the financial results of Players International,

Inc. from its March 22, 2000, date of acquisition.

fd) 1999 ineludes $2.2 miflion in pr}etax charges for write-downs, reserves and recoveries and $59.8 million of gains from sales of our equity interests in nenconsolidated
affiliates. 1999 also includes financial results of Rio Hotel & Casino, Inc. from its January 1, 1999, date of acquisition.

fe) 1998 includes $7.5 million in pretax charges for write-downs, reserves and recoveries and a $13.2 million gain on the sale of equity interests in a nonconsolidated
restaurant subsidiary. 1998 also includes the financial results of Showboat, Inc. from jts June 1, 1998, date of acquisition.

(f) EBITDA consists of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. Property EBITDA consists of Income from operations before depreciation and amorti-
zation, write-downs, reserves and recoveries, project opening costs, corporate expense, headquarters relocation and reorganization costs, equity in {income)/losses of
nonconsolidated affiliates, venture restructuring costs and amortization of intangible assets. See Exhibit 12 to our 2002 Form 10-K for the computation of Property
EBITDA. Property EBITDA is a supplemental financial measure used by management, as well as industry analysts, te evaluate our operations. However, Property
EBITDA should not be construed as an alternative to Income from operatfons (as an indicator of our operating performance) or to Cash flows from operating activities
{as a measure of liquidity) as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and presented in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements. All companies do ot calculate EBITDA in the same manner. As a result, Property EBITDA as presented by our Company may not be comparable to simi-
larly titled measures presented, by other companies.

{g) Ratio computed based on Income/(loss) from continuing operations.



Harrah's Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation, operates twenty-six casinos in thirteen states. We were incorporated on
November 2, 1988, and prior to such date operated under predecessor companies.
We conduct our business through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Harrah's Operating Company, Inc. {"HOC”), and through HOC's
subsidiaries. Our principal asset is the stock of HOC, which holds, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, substantially all of the assets
of our businesses. Qur principal executive offices are located at One Harrah's Court, Las Vegas, Nevada 89119, telephone (702) 407-6000.
In this discussion, the words “Harrah's Entertainment,” “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Harrah's Entertainment, Inc., together
with its subsidiaries where appropriate.

QVERALL OPERATING RESULTS

Our Company achieved record revenues, income from operations and net income in 2002, just as we did in 2007, In 2002, our revenues
exceeded $4 billion for the first time, increasing 12.1% aver 2001 revenues. Income from operations increased 34.5% and net income
increased 12.4%.

Percentage
Increase/{Decrease)

{In millions, except earnings per share) 2002 2001 2000 02 vs 01 01vs 00
Casino revenues $3,588.4 $32161 $28520 14.7% 12.8%
Total revenues 4,136.4 3,689.8 3,329.8 12.1% 10.8%
Income from operations 782.0 580.0 282.7 34.5% 105.2%
income/(toss) from continuing operations 324.8 208.4 (11.3) 55.8% N/M
Net income/{loss) 235.0 209.0 (12.1) 12.4% N/M
Earnings/{loss) per share-diluted

From continuing operations 2.36 1.80 (0.09) 58.9% N/M

Net income/{loss) 2.7 1.81 (0.10) 14.4% N/M
Operating margin 18.9% 15.7% 8.5% 3.2pts 1.2pts

NI =Not meaningful

Total revenues grew 12.1% in 2002 as a result of our acquisition of Harveys Casino Resorts {"Harveys”) on July 31, 2001, the consalidation
of Jazz Casino Company LLC into our financial results as of June 7, 2002, the return on recent targeted capital investments and same-store
sales growth at most of our properties. We attribute our improved results in 2002 to our consumer-marketing strategy, geographic diversity
and disciplined capital spending process. This continues the trends we reported for 2001 and 2000. Although strategic acquisitions contributed
to our revenue growth over the three years, “same-store” revenue growth of 8.7% was achieved in 2002. We define “same-store” revenue
growth as the increase in gaming revenue contributed by properties that were included in our results in each of the year-over-year periods
that are being compared.
In 2002, our income from operations increased 34.5%, net income increased 12.4% and diluted earnings per share increased 14.4%

over our 2001 results, despite the $91.2 million net charge recorded in 2002 for the impairment of intangible assets acquired in our 1999

acquisition of Rio Hotel and Casing, Inc. {“Rio”).

Some significant items that affected our 2002 results are listed below. These items are discussed in greater detail elsewhere in our
discussion of operating results and in the Debt and Liquidity section.

= We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” resulting in
cessation of the amortization of goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite life and recognition of an impairment charge of
$91.2 milfion, net of tax benefits of $2.8 million, related to intangible assets acquired in our 1999 acquisition of Rio.

G In June 2002, we acquired additional common shares of JCC Holding Company, which, together with its subsidiary, Jazz Casino
Company LLC (collectively, "JCC"), owns and operates the Harrah's casino in New Orleans, Louisiana. This acquisition increased our owner-
ship from 49% to 63%. In December 2002, we acquired the remaining shares of JCC common stock to increase our ownership to 100%.

o In December 2002, we acquired a controlling interest in Louisiana Downs, Inc. (“Louisiana Downs”), a thoroughbred racetrack in Bossier
City, Louisiana.

O Geaming tax rate changes in several states had a negative effect on operating profits of our casinos in those states.

O A decision to change our Total Rewards program, giving our customers greater flexibility and cantrol over redemption of their
accumulated rewards, resulted in a $6.8 million charge to Income from operations.

O A favorable settlement of a sales tax contingency resulted in the reversal of an approximate $6.5 million accrual.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations {continued)

3 National Afrlines, Inc. ("NAI") ceased cperations in November 2002. We had provided a letter of credit on behalf of NAIL which we were
required to fund in January 2003. in fourth quarter 2002, we recorded a charge of $6.1 million related to this letter of credit, net cf a
settlement with another investor of NA! of an obligation related to another letter of credit, which had been funded previously.

& A $5.0 million structural repairs charge was recorded in fourth quarter 2002 for our property in Reno, Nevada.

Comparison of our year-over-year results is complicated by unusual charges in each of the three years presented. The table below
presents a pro forma comparison of our operating results, which have been adjusted to exclude 2002 charges for NAI and our share

of a nonconsolidating subsidiary’s impairment of goodwill; 2001 gains from the condemnation and sale of nonstrategic real estate and

a loss from the sale of our equity interest in a subsidiary; and 2000 charges for JCC and NAI, and the estimated tax effects of those

events in each year.

Percentage
Increase/{Decrease)

{in millions, except earnings per share) 2002 2001 2000 02 vs 01 01vs 00
Total revenues $4,736.6 §$3,6838 $3329.8 12.1% 10.8%
Income from operations 782.1 580.0 502.7 34.8% 15.4%
Income from continuing operations 329.7 189.7 164.0 85.1% 21.8%
Net income 2601 200.3 163.3 19.9% 22.7%
Earnings per share—diluted

From continuing operations 2.80 1.73 1.38 67.6% 25.4%

Net income 2.19 1.73 1.37 22.0% 26.3%
Operating margin 18.2% 15.7% 15.1% 3.2pts 0.6pts

STRATEEC ACOLUISITIONS

As part of our growth strategy and to further enhance our geographic distribution, strengthen our access to target customers and leverage
our technological and centralized services infrastructure, we have acquired four casino companies, the remaining interest in the New
Orleans casino and a thoroughbred racetrack in the past five years. All of our acquisition transactions were accounted for as purchases.
The following table provides an overview of our acquisition activities and the discussion following the table pravides a brief review of our

acquisitions during the past three years.

fin millions)
Total Goodwill Number of
Company Date Acquired Purchase Price® Assigned Casinos Geographic Location
Showboat, Inc. June 1998 $1,045 $322 4% Atlantic City, New Jersey
East Chicago, Indiana
Rio Hotel & Casino Inc. January 1999 $ 987 $ 93 1 Las Veges, Nevada
Players International, Inc. March 2000 $ 439 $ 204 3 Lake Charles, Louisiana
Metropalis, lllinois
St. Louis, Missouri
Harveys Casino Resorts July 2001 $ 712 $ 265 4 Central City, Colorado®
Council Bluffs, lowa (2)
Lake Tahoe, Nevada
JCC Holding Company June 2002
December 2002 $ 148 none 1€ New Qrleans, Louisiana
Louisiana Downs, Inc. December 2002 $ 82 $ 64 1% Bossier City, Louisiana

{a) Total purchase price includes the market value of debt assumed determined as of the acquisition date and assets that were subsequently sold.

{bj Interests in two casinos that were included in the acquisttion were subsequently sold.

{c} Acquired additional 14% interest in June 2002 and remaining 37% interest in December 2002.
{d} Acquired a thoroughbred racetrack that can be expanded to include slot machines.

{e) This property is expected to be sold in the first half of 2003.

Flayers [ntematione), Ins. ("Playars”). On March 22, 2000, we completed our acquisition of Players, which operated a dockside riverboat
casine on the Ohio River in Metrooolis, liinois; two cruising riverboat casinos in Lake Charles, Louisiana; two dockside riverboat casinos in
Maryland Heights, Missouri; and a hamess horse racetrack in Pacucah, Kentucky. Players and Harrah's Entertainment jointly operated a
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landside hotel and entertainment facility at the Maryland Heights property, a suburb of St. Louis. The operations of the Players facility in
Maryland Heights were consclidated with the adjacent Harrah's operation immediately after the acquisition, and the Lake Charles and
Metropolis facilities were subsequently converted to the Harrah's brand.

Harveys Casina Resorts. On July 31, 2001, we completed our acquisition of Harveys. We paid approximately $294 million for the equity
interests in Harveys, assumed approximately $350 million in outstanding debt and paid approximately $18 million in acquisition costs. We
financed the acquisition, and retired Harveys assumed debt, with borrowings under our established debt programs. The purchase included
the Harveys Resort & Casino in Lake Tahoe, Nevada, the Harveys Casino Hotel and the Bluffs Run Casino, both in Council Bluffs, lowa, and
the Harveys Wagon Wheel Hotel/Casino in Central City, Colorado. The addition of the Harveys properties expanded our geographic distribution,
increased our nationwide casino square footage by almost 15% and added 1,109 hotel rooms, 149 table games and 5,768 slot machines to
serve our customers. The acquisition introduced our Total Rewards customer-loyalty program to 1.7 million potential new customers within
150 miles of Council Bluffs and strengthened our relationships with customers throughout the Nevada-Northern California gaming market.
With our acquisition of Harveys, we assumed a $50 million contingent liability, which was dependent on the results of a referendum
that was decided by the voters in Pottawattamie County, lowa, in November 2002. The referendum, which re-approved gaming at race-
tracks and on riverboats for another eight years, passed and we paid an additional $50 million in acquisition costs in fourth quarter 2002.
In fourth quarter 2002, we announced that we had entered into a definitive agreement to sell Harveys Wagon Wheel Hotel/Casino
in Central City, Colorado. Since acquiring Harveys, we evaluated the Colorado property and concluded that it is a nonstrategic asset for
us. Closing of the transaction is subject to customary regulatory approvals and is expacted to be completed in the first half of 2003. This
sale will not have a material effect on our financial results. The Colorado property is presented in our financial statements as discontinued
operations, and our 2001 resuits have been reclassified to reflect that property as discontinued operations.

Jazz Cesino Company. On June 7, 2002, we acquired additional shares of JCC's common stock. which increased our ownership fram
49% t0 63% and required a change in our accounting treatment for our investment in JCC from the equity method to consolidation of JCC
in our financial statements. We began consolidating JCC in our financial results on June 7, 2002. On December 10, 2002, we acquired alf of
the remaining shares of JCC's stock to increase our ownership to 100%.

We paid $72.4 million {$10.54 per share) for the additional ownership interest in JCC, acquired approximately $45.8 million of JCC's
debt, assumed approximately $28.2 million of JCC's Senior Notes, which we subsequently retired, and incurred approximately $1.9 million
of acquisition costs. We financed the acquisition and retired JCC's debt with funds from varigus scurces, including cash fiows from opera-
tions and borrowings under our established debt programs.

The purchase price allocation arising from our acquisition of the additional ownership of JCC is in pracess and is expected to be
completed by third quarter of 2003.

Lloxistana Dowss. On December 20, 2002, we acquired a controlling interest in Louisiana Downs, a thoroughbred racetrack in Bossier
City, Louisiana. The agreement gives Harrah's a 95% ownership interest in a company that now owns both Louisiana Downs and Hearrah's
Shreveport. We plan to install slot machines at the racetrack and expand and renovate the entertainment facility, which will be the only
land-based gaming facility in northern Louisiana. Plans call for Louisiana Downs to offer approximately 800 slot machines by the time racing
season begins in June 2003. We expect to open a new, permanent facility with approximately 1,500 slot machines by June 2004.

We paid approximately $81.6 million, including $29.3 million in short-term notes that were paid in full in January 2003 and $8.0 million
in equity interest in Harrah's Shreveport, for the interest in Louisiana Downs and approximately $0.1 million of acquisition costs. We financed
the acquisition with funds from various sources, including cash flows from operations and borrowings under our established debt programs.
The purchase price allocation of our acquisition of Louisiana Downs, including the equity interest in Harrah's Shreveport that was contributed
to the new company that now owns both Louisiana Downs and Harrah's Shreveport, is in its early stages and is expected to be completed
by fourth quarter 2003.

RECIONAL RESULTS AND DEVELDPMIENT PLANS
To facilitate discussion of our operating results, our properties have been grouped as follows:

Western Region Central Region Fastern Region Managed/Other
Harrah's Reno Harrah's Joliet Harrah's Atlantic City Harrah's Ak-Chin
Harrah's/Harveys Lake Tahoe Harrah's East Chicago Showboat Atlantic City Harrah's Cherokee
Bill's Harrah's Metropolis Harrah's Prairie Band
Harrah's Las Vegas Harrah's Council Bluffs Harrah's New Orleans
Rio Bluffs Run (prior to June 7, 2002)
Harrah's Laughlin Harrah's Shreveport Harrah's Rincon

Harrah's Vicksburg

Harrah's North Kansas City

Harrah's St. Louis

Harrah's Lake Charles

Harrah's Tunica
Harrah's New Orleans
{June 7, 2002 and after)

ad
&)
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations {continued)

In the following discussions of the operating results for our properties, we define operating profit as revenues less direct operating
expenses and depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of intangible assets.

Western Region Percentage
Increase/(Decrease)

{in millions) 2002 2001 2000 02vs 01 01vs 00

Casino revenues $ 8477 § 7667 $ 7268 10.6% 5.5%

Total revenues 2,265.5 1,184.2 1,129.7 6.9% 4.8%

Operating profit 201.C 129.4 127.9 55.3% 1.2%

Operating margin 15.8% 10.9% 11.3% 5.0pts (0.4)pts

Scuthern Keveda. 2002 revenues increased 1.3% in Southern Nevada where record revenues at Harrah's Las Vegas and Laughlin
more than offset the year-over-year decline in revenues at Rio. Revenues at Harrah's Las Vegas and Laughlin increased 3.7% and 7.5%,
respectively, while revenues at Rio were 2.5% below 2001 revenues. Operating profit in Southern Nevada increased 68.6% over 2001,
driven primarily by improved performance at the Rio due to cost management measures and the property’s decision to exit the high-end
international table games business in third quarter 2001. A charge of $13 million was recorded in 2001 to recognize the cost of this decision.
Cost management measures also contributed to the improved performance at Harrah's Las Veegas and Laughlin where operating profit grew
8.8% and 7.5%, respectively. Qur Southern Nevada properties are benefiting from marketing programs that enable us te capture more
cross-market play.

Revenue increases in Southar Nevada in 2001 over 2000 were due to record revenues at Harrah's Las Vegas, which achieved a
6.6% increase over 2000 revenues despite travel disruptions to this resart destination following the September 11, 2001, terrorist attacks.
2001 revenues at Harrah's Laughtin matched those reported in 2000, and Rio's 2001 revenues declined 0.5% from the prior year. The
increase in operating profit in 2001 in Southern Nevada was due to improved performance at the Rio, despite $13 million in nonrecurring
charges recorded by the Rio in 2001 to focus its operations. The focus of Rio's operations to de-emphasize intemational high-end table
game play, which generated losses in 2000, resulted in improved resuits at this property.

Nerthern Nevada. Northern Nevada posted record revenues in 2002 due to the inclusion of a full year's revenues from the Harveys
casino, which was acquired on July 31, 2001. This property contributed $136.5 milfion to Northern Nevada revenues in 2002. Excluding
revenues contributed by Harveys from both periods, Northern Nevada revenues were down fram 2001 due to weak market conditions in
the Reno area caused, in part, by heightened levels of competition from Indian casinos in the Northern California area. Operating profit was
34.5% higher than in 2001, due also to the inclusion of a full year's results from Harveys Lake Tahoe and to cost synergies assaciated with
the integration of the Harveys property into Harrah's systems. Approximately $6.3 million of goodwill is recorded on our books associated
with our Reno property. Although our most recent analysis of this asset indicated that it is not impaired, it is possible that this asset will
be impaired in a future period if current operating trends continue.

The increase in Northern Nevada revenues in 2001 over 2000 was due to the inclusion of operating results for Harveys Lake Tahoe
for the five months subsequent to our acquisition of Harveys. Excluding revenues contributed by Harveys, Northern Nevada revenues were
down 6.4%, as a result of the ensuing reduction in travel following the events of September 11 and fower than normal retail, especially
non-tracked, walk-in business in Northern Nevada due to the weak economy in the area’s major California feeder market. Operating profit
dropped 18.1% in Northern Nevada from 2000 due to increased costs associated with efforts to drive revenues to historic levels.

Central Region Percentage
Increase/(Decrease)

{in miffions) 2002 2001 2000 02vs 01 01vs 00

Casino revenues $2,031.6 $1,6980 $1,3816 19.6% 22.9%

Total revenues 2,017.5 1,707.6 1,392.8 18.1% 22.6%

Operating profit 3€8.2 361.4 304.8 10.2% 18.6%

Operating margin 18.7% 21.2% 21.9% (1.5)pts (0.7)pts

A full year of operations of the properties acquired in the Harveys acquisition and consolidation of New Orleans’ results subsequent to the
acquisition of a controlling interest in that property in early June 2002 combined to give the Central Region impressive increases in revenue
and operating profit in 2002. Our growth was also enhanced by recent capital investments that generated strong customer demand and
higher cash flow.
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The revenue and operating profit increases reported by the Central Region for 2001 versus 2000 were due to the addition of the
Harveys praperties, which were acquired July 31, 2001, inclusion of a full year of aperations of the properties acquired in the Players
acquisition in fate March 2000, and record performances at several of our properties in the region. The year-over-year growth was also
enhanced by recent capital investments.

Chicageland/lilineis. For the fourth straight year, our Chicagoland properties achieved record revenues. Revenues at Harrah's Joliet
increased 5.7% and operating profit increased 3.0% over 2001, 2001 operating profit was negatively impacted by accelerated depreciation on
riverboats that were remaved from service in late September 2001, when the property was converted from riverboats to barges. Following
the decision in mid-2000 to remaove the twao riverbaats from sesvice, depreciation was accelerated to reduce the riverboats ta their estimated
salvage values during their expected remaining service life. 2002 operating profit was negatively impacted by approximately $22.3 million
of additional gaming taxes due to state legislation effective July 1, 2002, which raised the maximum graduated gaming tax rate from 35%
to 50%. 2001 revenues at Harrah's Joliet were 6.1% higher than in 2000; however, cperating profit at that property was 3.8% lower than
in 2000 due to the accelerated depreciation of the riverboats.

2002 revenues at Harrah's East Chicago increased 5.1%; however, operating profit decreased 1.8% due to a new competitor in the
market, aggressive marketing among competitors and higher gaming tax rates, which were effective July 1, 2002, and increased the base
gaming tax rate from 20% to 22.5%. The Indiana legislation also included provisions that aflow casinos to convert from cruising to dockside
operations. If a casino elects to become a dockside operation, the gaming tax rate structure changes to a graduated scale with a maximum
tax rate of 35%, mitigated to some extent by a change in the method far computing admissions taxes. We converted our Hairah's East
Chicago operation from cruising to dockside during third quarter 2002. The net incremental gaming tax for Harrah's East Chicago in 2002
was $2.8 million. In first quarter 2002, we completed the opening of a $47 million hotel at this property. The first 10 floors of the 15-floor
hotel opened in late December 2001. 2001 revenues at Harrah's East Chicago increased 7.2% and operating profit increased 8.6% over
2000 levels. }

Revenues at Harrah's Metropolis increased 16.0% in 2002, and operating profit was 9.2% higher than in 2001, despite the mid-year
increase in gaming taxes that decreased 2002 operating profit by $2.4 million. This property benefited fram capital improvements and from
the conversion to the Harrah's brand in September 2001. Harrah's Metropolis, which was acquired in the Players transaction in March
2000, contributed $118.0 million in revenues and $31.6 million in operating profit in 2001 compared to $85.3 miltion in revenues and
$27.2 million in aperating profit for the period subsequent to its acquisition in 2000. Construction was completed in September 2001
to renovate the Metropolis facility, including replacing the existing riverboat with a larger, refurbished riverboat that had previously been
used at our North Kansas City property. As a component of this project, the property was converted from the Players to the Harrah's brand.

Louisiena. Harrah's Shreveport achieved record revenues for the second consecutive year, increasing revenues by 81% over 2001,
Operating profit increased 19.7% over 2001 levels. Shreveport's year-over-year improvement, which was primarily attributable to the
514-room hotel and player amenities that opened in the first quarter of 2001, was partially offset by higher gaming taxes, which increased
one percentage point on April 1, 2002, and will increase another percentage peint on Aprit 1, 2003, when the last scheduled tax rate
increase becomes effective. 2001 revenues at Harrah's Shreveport increased 32.1% over 2000 revenues. These revenue gains were due
to the opening of the new hotel and player amenities in the first quarter of 2001. Increased promoticnal expenses, cost inefficiencies
associated with the staggered opening of the hotel, increased depreciation associated with the newly constructed assets and a one
percentage point increase in gaming taxes that was effective in second quarter 2001 combined to cause margins to decline, resulting

in only & 1.4% increase in operating profit in 2001,

The Lake Charles property, which was acquired in the Players acquisition in March 2000 and was re-branded to the Harrah's brand in
fourth guarter 2000, saw revenues decline 14.3% in 2002 due to increased competition in the area, including the addition of slot machines
at a racetrack located closer than our property to one of our Texas feeder markets, additional Indian casino offerings and the impact on
customer access of a highway construction project. Operating profit was 40.3% lower than in 2001 dus to lower revenues, higher costs
driven by the increased competition and higher gaming taxas. In 2001, Harrah's Lake Charles contributed $164.3 million in revenues and
$28.7 million in operating profit compared to $123.1 million in revenues and $21.2 million in operating profit for the sfightly more than nine
months that we owned the property in 2000. A major refurbishment of the hotel at this property, which was conducted in 2007, created
construction disruptions and loss of available raoms during the construction period. Also affecting operating profit was an increase in the
gaming tax rate from 18.5% to 21.5% of gaming revenues, which was effective in the second guarter of 2001. Approximately $55.8 million
of goodwill is allocated to the Lake Charles property. Should the negative operating trend at our Lake Charles property continue, it could
impact the annual analysis for the impairment of goodwill for that operating unit.

Also contributing to our 2002 results in Louisiana was the consolidation of Harrah's New Orleans into our financial results effective
June 7, 2002, following our acquisition of a controlling interest in JCC. Subseguent to its consolidation, New Orleans contributed
$154.5 millian in revenues and $16.0 million in operating profit to our 2002 results.

On December 20, 2002, we completed our acquisition of a controlling interest in Louisiana Downs, a thoroughbred racetrack in
Bossier City, Louisiana. The agreement gives Harrah's a 95% awnership interest in a company that now owns both Louisiana Downs and
Harrah's Shrevepart. We plan to install slot machines at the racetrack and expand and renovate the entertainment facility, which will be
the only land-based gaming facility in northern Louisiana. Current plans call for Louisiana Downs to offer approximately 900 slots by the
time racing season begins in June 2003. We expect to open a new, permanent casino facility at Louisiana Downs, with approximately
1,500 slot machines, by June 2004.
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ianagement's Discussion and Aralysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations {continued)

Mississipzl Combined revenues from our Mississippi properties increased 2.6% in 2002. Combined operating profit increased 92.9%
over 2001 levels, due to cost-containment measures implemented at both our Mississippi properties. 2001 combined revenues from our
Mississippi operations increased 2.8% compared to 2000. Cperating profit from our Mississippi properties increased 47.3% in 2001 over
2000 as a result of the higher revenues and increased cost efficiency efforts.

Visseurl. For the third consecutive vear, record revenues and operating profit were achieved by our Harrah's North Kansas City property.
2002 revenues and operating profit at Harrah's North Kansas City increased 0.6% and 10.4%, respectively, over 2001. 2001 revenues
were 4.7% higher than in 2000, and operating profit was 4.7% higher due to effective marketing, cost management efforts and facilities
enhancements at the property. Construction was completed at the end of the second quarter of 2001 an the new casino space at North
Kansas City, which consolidated all of the gaming space into a single facility. The riverboat that had been used since 1994 was refurbished
and moved to our Metropalis property.

2002 revenues for Harrah's St. Louis were 8.1% below 2001 revenues, and operating profit was 16.0% befow the prior year due to
increased competition and intense promotional activity in the market. A competitor opened a new large-scale casino near our St. Louis
property during 2002, 2001 revenues at Harrah's St. Louis were 21.2% higher than 2000 revenues, and operating profit was up 32.8%
compared to 2000. These increases reflected the March 22, 2000, acquisition of Players and operational synergies achieved with the
combination of the Harrah's and Players operations. Development has begun on a $75 million expansion at Harrah's St. Louis, which will
include a second hotel tower, redasign of the hotel lobby, new valet parking areas, the addition of parking garage express ramps and the
expansion of two restaurants and other amenities. The expansion project is expected to be completed in mid-to-late 2004.

The St. Louis shore-side facilities were owned jointly with Players prior ta our March 2000 acquisition of that company. Qur pro rata
share of operating losses of the joint venture in 2000 up to the date of the Players acquisition was $2.4 million. These operating losses
are included in Equity in (income)/losses of nonconsolidated affiliates in our Consolidated Statements of Operations (see Other Factors
Affecting Net Income/(Loss)). Subsequent to the Players acquisition, results of the shore-side facilities, as well as for Players St. Louis
operations, are combined with Harrah's St. Louis’ operating resuits.

Ipyve. On a combined basis, our two lowa properties contributed $236.7 million in revenues and $41.4 million in eperating profit to our 2002
results compared to $103.6 million in revenues and $21.2 million in operating profit for the five months that we owned these properties in 2001.

In fourth quarter 2002, we announced plans for an $8.4 million renovation of the hotel at the Council Bluffs property to be completed
in third quarter 2003.

Pursuant to lowa law, a county-wide referendum must be held every eight years to approve gambling activities both at racetracks
and on riverboats. In November 2002, the voters of Pottawattamie County, lowa, where our lowa operations are located, voted to allow
gaming to continue, and that positive vote triggered an additional $50 million in acquisition costs, which was paid in fourth quarter 2002,
related to our acquisition of Harveys in 2001.

The lowa Supreme Court issued an opinion in June 2002 that has the effect of reducing the gaming tax rate on gaming revenuss
eamned by casinos at dog tracks operating in the state, including our Biuffs Run Casino. Casinos at dog tracks were taxed at a higher rate
(32%) than the casinos on riverbuats operating in lowa (20%). The Court ruled this disparity was unconstitutional. The lowa Supreme
Court denied the State's petition for rehearing and remanded the case to the lowa District Court for determination of the appropriate refief.
The lower court subsequently ruled that all taxes paid above the 20% rate of the riverboats had to be refunded. The State appealed the
lowa Supreme Court’s decision tc the United States Supreme Court and in January 2003, the United States Supreme Court agreed to
hear the case. We have followed the instructions of the lowa Racing and Gaming Commission to pay taxes at the 20% rate for Bluffs
Run. However, given the uncertainty of this situation, we have continued to accrue gaming taxes at the 32% rate, and we will continue
this practice until this matter is clarified and our ultimate tax exposure is known. Depending upon future changes in the gaming tax rate
imposed by the lowa legislature, an additionat payment based on a multiple of the calculated annual savings may be due to lowa West
Racing Assaciation (“lowa West"), the entity holding the pari-mutuel and gaming license for the Bluffs Run Casino and with whom we
have a management agreement to operate that property. Any additional payment that may be due to lowa West would increase goodwill
related to our acquisition of Harveys.

Fastern Region Percentage
Increase/{Decrease)

{In millions) 2002 2001 2000 02 vs 01 01vs 00

Casino revenues $808.7 $751.0 $743.3 7.7% 1.0%

Total revenues 777.6 7240 7235 7.4% 0.1%

Operating profit ' 2174 183.0 182.3 18.8% 0.4%

Operating margin 28.0% 25.3% 25.2% 2.7pts 0.1pts
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Harrah's Atlantic City achieved record revenues for the sixth consecutive year in 2002, and its operating profit, which was at a record
level for the fourth consecutive year, increased 16.4% over 2001. These increases were driven by the opening of the new hotel tower and
the addition of approximately 450 slot machines at this property in second quarter 2002 and more cost-effective marketing programs.
The 452-ro0m addition increased the hotel’s capacity to more than 1,600 reoms and completed a project that created an additional
28,000 square feet of casino floor space and expanded a buffet area. These capital improvements cost approximately $180 million.

Near the end of fourth quarter 2002, an additional 500 slot machines were added in a portion of the recently expanded casino floor that
was not being utilized. Harrah's Atlantic City’s 2001 revenues and operating profit increased 0.8% and 5.9%, respectively, compared to
2000. These records were achieved despite construction disruptions during most of the year and disruptions to business due to the
September 11 terrorist attacks.

Showboat Atlantic City also posted record revenues in 2002 and its operating profit was 23.7% higher than in 2001, Property
enhancements and more cost-effective marketing drove the improved results at this property. Canstruction is underway on a $90 million,
544-room hotel tower at Showboat Atlantic City, which is expected to open in the second quarter of 2003. As of December 31, 2002,
$50 million had been spent on this project. Construction will begin in the first quarter of 2003 on a project that will redesign the boardwatk
facade and entrance of the Showboat Atlantic City property, provide additional gaming space with approximately 450 slot machines, create
a new bar/stage/dance floor area, improve the walkway entrance to Showboat and add a food court dining area. The project is expected to
cost approximately $35 million and completion is targeted for the fourth quarter of 2003. 2001 revenues and operating profit at Showboat
Atlantic City were 0.7% and 12.8% below 2000 levels. This property, which is more reliant on customers who travel to Atlantic City by
bus, was impacted by the September 11 terrorist attacks and construction disruptions related to reconfiguration of the casino floor. The
reconfiguration of Showboat's casino floor was completed in the second quarter of 2001, a new buffet and coffee shop opened in the
fourth quarter of 2001 and our tiered Total Rewards customer-loyalty program was implemented during 2001 at this property.

Managed Casinos and Other Percentage
Increasef(Decrease)

{In millions) 2002 2001 2000 02vs 01 01vs 00

Revenues $78.7 $69.0 $785 2.5% (12.1)%

Operating profit 23.3 308 40.4 (7.1)% (23.8)%

With the acquisition of the remaining interest in the New Orleans casino in 2002, our managed casinos now consist of four tribal casinos.
Our management agreement with Rincon was effective in August 2002, and we have extended the management agreements for the three
other Indian properties that we manage. The table below gives the location and expiration date of the current management contracts for
our Indian properties.

Casino Location Expiration of Management Agreement
Harrah's Cherokee Cherokee, North Carolina November 2004
Harrah's Ak-Chin near Phoenix, Arizona December 2004
Harrah's Rincon near San Diego, California August 2007
Harrah's Prairie Band near Topeka, Kansas January 2008

Revenues and operating profits from our managed properties were higher in 2002 than in the previcus year due to the opening in August
2002 of Harrah's Rincon Casino and Resort, owned by the Rincon San Luiseno Band of Mission indians {“Rincon”) in Southern California and
to higher fees from New Orleans prior to its consolidation in June 2002, partially offset by changes in fee structures provided by extended
management agreements.

Revenues and operating profit from our managed casinos were fower in 2001 than in 2000. Fees from Harrah's New Orleans and the
Star City Casino in Sydney, Australia, were less in 2001 than in 2000 due to changes in the management agreements. No management
fees were recorded from Harrah's New Orleans in the first quarter of 2001 due to the bankruptcy filing of JCC. Pursuant to JCC's reorgani-
zation plan, which was effective at the end of March 2001, an amended management agreement changed the base management fee to
an incentive management fee based on earnings of the business before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation, amortization and
management fees. Management fees from Indian-owned casinos increased 13.5% over fees earned in 2000 due to strong performances
at those properties.

Construction was completed in second quarter 2002 on a new 252-room hotel and 30,000-square-foot conference center at Harrah's
Cherokee Smoky Mountain Casing in Cherokee, North Carolina. In fourth quarter 2002, an expansion project was completed that added
approximately 22,000 square feet of casino space at this property.

In August 2002, Harrah's Rincon Casino and Resort, a casino and hotel on Rincon fand located less than fifty miles north of
San Diego, California, opened for business. This location provides convenient access to metropolitan San Diego, La Jolla, Del Mar,
Escondido and Orange County, California. Rincon opened a temporary casino facility in January 2001. We provided Rincon technical
services related to the development and operation of the temporary casino, but we did not manage the temparary facility.

An expansion to the Harrah's Ak-Chin casino opened in first quarter 2001 and includes a new 146-room hotel, an additional
restaurant, meeting and banquet room facilities, a resort pool and a landscaped courtyard. A new twenty-five year compact between the
State of Arizona and the Ak-Chin Indian Community was approved in February 2003. The new compact increases the number of permitted
machines and adds blackjack and jackpat poker to the scope of gaming at the Ak-Chin casino.
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Design has begun on & $55 million expansion project at Harrah's Prairie Band. The expansion will include the addition of 198 hotel
rooms, a 12,000-square-foot convention center and a new restaurant. The project is expected to be completed in late 2004.
Construction costs of Indian casinos and hotels have been funded by the tribes or by the tribes’ debt, some of which we guarantee.

See Debt and Liquidity for further discussion of our guarantees of debt related to Indian projects.

Also included in Managed Casinos and Other are our development, brand marketing and other costs that are directly related to our

casino operations and development but are not property specific.

Other Factors Affecting Net Income/(Loss) Percentage
{Income)/Expense Increase/{Decrease)
fIn mitlions) 2002 2001 2000 02vs 01 01vs 00
Development costs $§ 25 § 64 $ 64 48.4% -
Write-downs, reserves and recoveries:

Reserves for New Orleans casino - 2.3 220.0 N/Vi N/M
Other 5.0 20.2 6.1 (75.2)% N/M
Project opening costs 1.8 131 8.3 (86.3)% 57.8%
Corporate expense £6.6 52.7 50.5 7.4% 4.4%

Headquarters relocation and recrganization costs - - 3.0 - N/M
Equity in {income)/losses of nonconsolidated affiliates (£.1) (0.1 57.9 N/M N/M
Venture restructuring costs - 25 0.4 N/M N/M
Amortization of intangible assets 4.8 25.0 215 (82.0)% 16.3%
Interest expense, net 240.2 255.8 2271 (6.1)% 12.6%
Losses on interests in nonconsolidated affiliates 6.5 5.0 416 22.0% (88.0)%
Other income (2.9 (28.2) (3.9) (92.6)% N/M
Effective tax rate 36.8% 36.4% 86.4% 0.4pts (50.0)pts
Minority interests $ 14.0 $ 126 $ 138 11.1% 8.7)%
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes {1.8) {0.6) - N/M N/M
Extraordinary losses, net of income taxes - - 0.7 - N/M
Change in accounting principle, net of income taxes 21.2 - - N/M -

N/M = Not meaningful

Write-downs, reserves and recoveries include various pretax charges to record asset impairments, contingent liabilities, project write-offs
and recoveries at time of sale of previously recorded reserves for asset impairment. The components of Write-downs, reserves and

recoveries—ather were as follows:

{In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Write-off of abandoned assets and other costs $ 6,977 $ 8,484 $ 2,800
Charge for structural repairs at Reno 5.3 - -
Impairment of long-lived assets 1,501 8,203 5,813
Termination of contracts 168 4,060 2,505
Recoveries from previously impaired assets and reserved amounts {2.697) {571) (5,012)
Settlement of sales tax contingency {6.464) - -

$ 5,031 $20,176 $ 6,106

Project opening costs for each of he three years presented include costs incurred in cannection with the integration of acquired properties

into the Harrah's systems and technology and costs incurred in connection with expansion and renovation projects at various properties.
Corporate expense increased 7.4% in 2002 over 2001, primarily due to increased incentive compensation plan expenses and legal

expenses related to patent litigation, but represented only 1.4% of revenues in 2002, which is basically level with the 1.4% of revenues

reported in 2001 and 1.5% in 2000.

During 1999, we relocated our corporate headquarters and moved our senior carporate executives and their support staffs to Las
Vegas, Nevada. The Company’s national services headquarters remains in Memphis, Tennessee. $10.3 million of costs related to the relo-
cation of the Company's headquarters was expensed in 1999, The final phase of the relocation was completed in 2000, and an additional

$3.0 million was expensed in that year.
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2002 Equity in {income}/losses of nonconsolidated zffiliates increased $3.9 million over 2001, due primarily to income from our share
of JCC's earnings untit June 7, 2002, when we began consolidating the New Orleans results due to our increased ownership, offset by
our $2.1 million share of a goodwill impairment charge taken by a nonconsolidated subsidiary. Equity in nonconsolidated affiliates in 2001
improved significantly over 2000 losses, which reflected our share of operating losses for 2000 from JCC ($46.0 million) and NAI ($9.3 mil-
lion). NAl and JCC filed voluntary petitions for reorganization relief in December 2000 and January 2001, respectively, triggering write-offs
of our remaining investments and reserves for receivables and contingent liabifities. Our equity pick-up of the operating losses of both
JCC and NAI ceased as of the end of 2000, With the implementation of JCC's reorganization plan, we resumed recording our share of JCC's
results in second quarter 2001, however, our ownership interest increased to 48% from approximately 42% in 2000. Since the acquisition
of Players in March of 2000, the St. Louis shore-side facilities are included in our St. Louis operations; therefore, Equity in {income|/losses
of nonconsolidated affiliates for 2000 included our pro rata share of these facilities' losses only up to the date of the Players acquisition.

Venture restructuring costs represent our costs, including legal fees, associated with the development of reorganization plans for the
New Orleans casino.

Amortization of intangible assets is down significantly from 2001 due to the implementation of SFAS No. 142 in first quarter 2002,
whereby we ceased amortization of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives. 2001 Amortization of intangible assets increased
over 2000 with the acquisition of Harveys. Because the acquisition of Harveys occurred after June 30, 2001, it was subject to SFAS No, 142,
so goodwill and other intangible assets with indafinite lives were not amortized; however, certain other intangible assets with defined lives
related to the Harveys acquisition are being amartized. (See Notes 2 and 3 ta our Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Although the Company's average debt balance was higher in 2002 than in 2007 due to acquisitions and our stock repurchase program,
interest expense decreased in 2002 dus to lowsr interest rates on variable rate debt. The average interest rate on our variable-rate debt
was 2.3% at December 31, 2002, compared to 4.0% at December 31, 2001. An increase in interest rates could have a material effect on
our financial results. Assuming a constant outstanding balance for our variable-rate debt for the next twelve months, a hypothetical 1%
increase in interest rates would increase interest expense for the next twelve months by approximately $14.6 million. Our variable rate
debt represents approximately 38% of our total debt, while our fixed-rate debt is approximately 62% of our total debt. Interest expense
increased in 2001 over 2000 due to debt incurred and assumed in connection with our acquisitions and stock repurchase activities.

The 2002 Losses on interests in nonconsolidated affiliates refiects a charge in fourth quarter 2002 to fund a letter of credit that we
had provided on behalf of NAI, which ceased aperations in November 2002, The approximate $6.1 million charge in fourth quarter 2002
was net of a settlement with another investor of NAI of an obligation related to another letter of credit, which had been funded previously.
2001 reflects the write-off of an investment in Zoho Corporation. The 2000 Losses on interests in nonconsolidated affiliates reflects the
charges for reserves related to NAI and the loss on an investment.

2002 Other income includes interest income on the cash surrender value of life insurance policies. net proceeds from litigation
settlements and other miscellaneous items. In 2001, Other income included & gain on the settlement on the 1998 condemnation of land
in Atlantic City, the sale of nonstrategic land in Nevada and resolution of a contingency related to a former affiliate. Other income in 2000
was primarily interest income on the cash surrender value of life insurance policies.

The effective tax rate for 2002, as well as for 2001 and 2000, is higher than the federal statutory rate primarily due to state income
taxes. The effective tax rates in 2001 and 2000 were also affected by that portion of our goodwill amortization that was not deductible for
tax purposes. With the cessation of goodwill amortization in the first quarter of 2002 as the result of the implementation of SFAS No. 142,
our effective tax rate declined from the 2001 rate; however, our effective tax rate increased in second quarter 2002 due to the exposure to
higher state income taxes in 2002.

Minarity interests reflect joint venture partners’ shares of income at joint venture casinos.

Discontinued aperations reflect the results of Harveys Wagon Whee! Hotel/Casino in Central City, Colorado, for which we have an
agreement to sell. 2001 results for the Colorado property have been reclassified to canform to the 2002 presentation.

Extraordinary losses reported in 2000 are due to early extinguishments of debt and include the premium paid to holders of the debt
retired and the write-off of related unamortized deferred finance charges. (See Debt and Liquidity—Extinguishments of Debt.)

The change in accounting principle represents the first quarter 2002 charge for the impairment of Rio’s goodwill and trademark
recorded in conngction with the implementation of SFAS No. 142. {See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.)

CATPITAL SPEXDING AND DEVELOPMENT
Part of our plan for growth and stability includes disciplined capital improvement projects, and 2002 and 2001 were both years of
significant capital reinvestment in our properties.

In addition to the specific development and expansion projects discussed in Regional Results and Development Plans, we perform
ongoing refurbishment and maintenance at our casino entertainment facilities to maintain our quality standards. We also continue to
pursue development and acquisition opportunities for additional casino entertainment facilities that meet our strategic and return on
investment criteria. Prior to the receipt of necessary regulatory approvals, the costs of pursuing development projects are expensed as
incurred. Canstruction-related costs incurred after the receipt of necessary approvals are capitalized and depreciated over the astimated
useful life of the resulting asset. Project opening costs are expensed as incurred.

QOur capital spending for 2002 totaled approximately $376.0 million, excluding the costs of our acquisitions of Louisiana Downs and
the remaining interest in JCC. 2001 capital spending was $550.5 million, excluding the costs of our acquisition of Harveys. For the year
2000, our capital spending, excluding the costs of our acquisition of Players and the purchase of JCC's debt, was $568.3 million. Estimated
total capital expenditures for 2003 are expected to be between $400 million and $450 million and do not include estimated expenditures
for unidentified development apportunities. Our planned development projects, if they go forward, will require, individually and in the
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations {continued)

aggregate, significant capital commitments and, if completed, may result in significant additional revenues. The commitment cf capital,
the timing of completion and the commencement of operations of casino entertainment development projects are contingent upon, among
other things, negatiation of final agreements and receipt of approvals from the appropriate politica! and regulatory bodies. Cash needed to
finance projects currently under development as well as additional projects being pursued is expected to be made available from operating
cash flows, the Bank Facility {see Debt and Liquidity}, joint venture partners, specific project financing, guarantees of third-party debt and,
if necessary, additional debt and/cr equity offerings.

DERT AND LIQUIZTY

We generate substantial cash flows from operating activities, as reflected on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. For 2002, we
reported cash flows from operating activities of $738.6 million, a4.5% decrease over the $773.0 million reported in 2001. The 2001 amount
reflected a 41.2% increase over the 2000 level. These cash flows reflect the impact on our consolidated operations of the success of our
marketing programs, our strategic acquisitions, angoing cost containment focus and favorable variable interest rates.

We use the cash flows gensrated by the Company to fund reinvestment in existing properties for both refurbishment and expansion
projects, pursue additional growth opportunities via strategic acquisitions of existing companies and new development opportunities and
return of capital to our sharehalders in the form of stock repurchase programs. When necessary, we supplement the cash flows generated
by our operations with funds provided by financing activities to balance our cash requirements.

QOur cash and cash equivalents totaled approximately $415.9 million at December 31, 2002, compared to $356.6 million at December
31, 2001. The following provides a summary of our cash flows for the years ended December 31.

{In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Cash provided by operating activities $ 738,27¢ $ 772,988 $ 547,568
Capital investments (37%,163) (524,006) (423,084)
Payments for businesses acquired (162,431) (251,873) (260,185)

Investments in affiliates {34) {14,247) (314,921)
Proceeds from asset/investment sales 3£,783 32,998 276,230
Other investing activities {7,1C2) {14,920) 2,378
Free cash flow 228,560 940 (172,014)
Cash (used in)/provided by financing activities {173,274) 79,425 237,635
Cash provided by/{used for) discontinued operations 6,317 (22,966) -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 38,283 $ 57,399 $ 65,621

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents balance, our cash flow from operations and the financing sources discussed herein,

will be sufficient to meet our normal operating requirements during the next twelve months. We continue to revisw additional opportunities
te acquire or invest in companies, properties and ather investments that are cornpatible with our existing business. We could use cash,
the financing sources discussed Ferein and financing sources that subsequently become available, to fund additional acquisitions or invest-
ments. In addition, we may consider issuing additional debt or equity securities in the future to fund potential acquisitions or growth or

to refinance existing debt. If a material acquisition or investment is completed, our operating results and financial condition could change
materially in future periods.

Banlr Fociiiy
As of December 31, 2002, the Company had revolving credit and letter of credit facilities {the “Bank Facility”}, which provided us with
borrowing capacity of $1.857 billicn. The Bank Facility consists of a five-year $1.525 billion revolving credit and letter of cradit facility maturing
in 2004 and a separate $332 million revolving credit facility, which is renewable annually at the borrower’s and fenders’ options. As of
December 31, 2002, the Bank Facility bears interest based upon 80 basis points over LIBOR for current borrowings under the five-year
facility and 85 basis points over LIBOR for the 364-day facility. In addition, there is a facility fee for borrowed and unborrowed amounts,
which is currently 20 basis points on the five-year facility and 15 basis points on the 364-day facility. The interest rate and facility fee are
based on our current debt ratings and leverage ratio and may change as our debt ratings and leverage ratio change. There is an option
on each facility to borrow at the prime rate. As of December 31, 2002, $1.286 billion in borrowings were outstanding under the Bank
Facility, with an additional $80.9 million committed to back letters of credit. After consideration of these borrowings, $480.6 million of
additional borrowing capacity was available to the Company as of December 31, 2002,

The majority of our debt is due in the year 2004 and beyond. Payments of short-term debt obligations and other commitments are
expected to be made from operating cash flows. Long-term obligations are expected to be paid through operating cash flows, refinancing
of debt, joint venture partners or, if necessary, additional debt and/or equity offerings.
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Commarcial Papar

To provide the Company with cost-effective borrowing flexibility, we have a $200 million commercial paper program that is used to barrow
funds for general corporate purposes. Although the debt instruments are short-term in tenor, they are classified as long-term debt because
the commercial paper is backed by our Bank Facility, and we have committed to keep available capacity under our Bank Facility in an amount
equal to or greater than amounts borrowed under this program. At December 33, 2002, $133.7 million was outstanding under this program.

lsswance of ey Dabt

In addition to our Bank Facility, we have issued debt and entered into credit agreements to provide the Company with cost-effective
borrowing flexibility and to replace short-term, floating-rate debt with fong-term, fixed-rate debt. The table below summarizes the face
value of debt obligations entered into during the last three years and outstanding at December 31, 2002,

Face Value
{In milfions) QOutstanding at
Debt Issued Matures December 31, 2002
Uncommitted Line of Credit Agreements 2002 2003 $ 310
Commercial Paper 2002 2003 1397
8.0% Senior Notes January 2001 2011 500.0
7.125% Senior Notes June 2001 2007 500.0

Ettinguishments of Dabe

Funds from the new debt discussed above, as well as proceeds from our Bank Facility, were used to retire certain of our outstanding debt,
in particular those debt obligations assumed in our acquisition transactions, to reduce our effective interest rate and/or lengthen maturities,
The following table summarizes the debt obligations that we have retired over the last three years.

{in millions)

Issuer Date Retired Debt Extinguished Face Value Retired
JCC December 2002 Senior Notes due 2008 $ 282
Harveys September 2001 10.625% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2006 150.0
Showboat August 2001 13% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2003 21
Harveys July 2001 Credit facility due 2004 192.0
Players June 2000 10.875% Senior Notes due 2005 1500
Showboat June 2000 9.25% First Mortgage Bonds due 2008 56.4

Short-term Dabt
in a program designed for short-term borrowings at lower interest rates than the rates paid under our Bank Facility, we have entered
into an uncommitted line of credit agreement with a lender whereby we can borrow up to $31.0 million for periods of thirty days or less.
At December 31, 2002, we had borrowed $31.0 million under this agreement. Borrowings bear interest at current market rates. Interest
rates on amounts borrowed under these agreements during 2002 ranged from 2.4% to 31%. This agreement does not decrease our
borrowing capacity under our Bank Facility.

At December 31, 2002, we had $29.3 milfion of short-term debt related to our acquisition of Louisiana Downs in December 2002.
This debt was paid in full in January 2003.

In June 2000, we entered into a 364-day credit agreement {the “Credit Agreement”) with & lender whereby we borrowed $150 mil-
lion to redeem the Players Notes. Interest rates, facility fees and covenants in the Credit Agreement were identical to those pravisions
contained in our Bank Facility. The Credit Agreement was retired in January 2001, using proceeds from the 8.0% Senior Notes.

Equicy Repurchase Frograms
During the past three years, our Board of Directors has authorized four plans whereby we have purchased shares of the Company’s commen
stock in the open market from time to time as market conditions and other factors warranted. The table below summarizes the four plans.

Plan Number of Shares Number of Shares Purchased Average Price
Authorized Authorized As of December 31, 2002 Per Share
April 2000 12.5 million 12.5 million $25.08
July 2001 6.0 million 6.0 million 37.15
July 2002 2.0 million 1.4 million 39.24
November 2002 3.0 million None N/A

The July 2002 authorization expired December 31, 2002, and the November 2002, authorization expires December 31, 2003. The repurchases
were funded through available operating cash flows and borrowings from our established debt programs.
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7 ST IRTH P N o 7 vy M (7 e 33, el
Guarantees of Third-party Debt and Cther Chlipations and Commitmaents

The following tables summarize our contractual obligations and other commitments as of December 31, 2002

{in millions) Payments due by Period
Less than After
Contractual Obligations Total 1year  1-3years  4-5years 5 years
Debt $3,823.8 $ 614 $21798 $501.8 §$1,0810
Capital lease obligations 1.0 0.3 0.7 - -
Operating lease obligations 659.8 40.5 104.2 65.6 4495
Guaranteed payment to State of Louisiana 134.8 60.0 74.8 - -
Community reinvestment 99.2 6.4 12.7 8.0 721
Construction commitments 88.8 88.8 - - -
Other contractual obligations 442 245 14.9 2.6 22
{In millions) Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period
Total amounts Less than Over
Other Commitments committed Tyear  1-3years  4-5years 5 years
Guarantees of loans $265.0 $864.5 $175.5 $25.0 $ -
Letters of credit 81.7 81.7 - - -
Minimum payments to tribes 343 14.4 18.6 1.3 -

The agreements pursuant to whic1 we manage casinos on Indian lands contain provisions reguired by law that provide that a minimum
monthly payment be made to the tribe. That obligation has pricrity over scheduled repayments of borrowings for development costs and
over the management fee earned and paid to the manager. In the event that insufficient cash flow is generated by the operations to fund
this payment, we must pay the shortfall to the tribe. Subject to certain limitations as to time, such advances, if any, would be repaid to us
in future periods in which operations generate cash flow in excess of the required minimum payment. These commitments will terminate
upon the occurrence of certain defined events, including termination of the management contract. Our aggregate monthly commitment
for the minimum guaranteed payments pursuant to the contracts for the four managed Indian-owned facilities now open, which extend
for periods of up to sixty-one months from December 31, 2002, is $1.2 million. Each of these casinas currently generates sufficient cash
flows to cover all of their obligations, including their debt service.

We may guarantee all or part of the debt incurred by Indian tribes with which we have entered a management contract to fund
development of casinos on the Indian lands. For all existing guarantees of Indian debt, we have obtained a first lien on certain personal
property (tangible and intangible) of the casino enterprise. There can be no assurance, however, that the value of such property would
satisfy our cbligations in the event these guarantees were enforced. Additionally, we have received limited waivers from the Indian tribes
of their sovereign immunity to allow us to pursue our rights under the contracts between the parties and to enfarce collection efforts
as to any assets in which a security interest is taken. The aggregate outstanding balance of such debt as of December 31, 2002, was
$227.8 million.

Depending upan future changes in the gaming tax rate imposed by the lowa legislature, an additional payment based on a multiple
of the calculated annual savings may be due lowa West, the entity holding the pari-mutuel and gaming license for the Bluffs Run Casino
in Council Bluffs, lowa, and with whom we have a management agreement to operate that property. Any additional payment that may
be due to lowa West would increase goodwill related to our acquisition of Harveys. Given the uncertainty of the tax rate situation in lowa
{see discussion in Regional Results and Development Plans, Central Region, lowa), we cannot estimate the amount of this contingency.

Our East Chicago property has established a home ownership program for its employess whereby efigible employees may receive
down payment assistance of up to 5% of the purchase price of a single family home located in the City of East Chicago, not to exceed
$5,000 per employee. If the employee leaves the employment of Harrah's within one year after the funds are provided, the employee
must reimburse the program far a pro-rated amount of the amount that was funded by the program. At December 31, 2002, no funds
had been provided under this procram. Under a second program, Harrah's East Chicago will guarantee mortgage payments up to 25%
of the mortgage amount for a minimum of 250 East Chicago residential home purchases. Our maximum exposure under the guarantee
is $5.0 miflion. At December 31, 2002, one loan was outstanding under this program, and our guarantee related to that loan was
approximately $34,000.
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EFFZCTS OF CURRENT ZCONOMIC AXD POLITICAL CONDITIONS

Aftermarth of the September 11, 2007 Atacls

We cannot predict the length or severity of the economic downturn that was precipitated, in part, by the September 11 terrorist attacks.

A significant period of reduced discretionary spending and disruptions in airline trave! and business conventions could have a material
adverse impact on our results of operations. In addition, the September 11 attacks, the potential for future terrorist attacks, the national and
international responses to terrorist attacks and other acts of war or hostility have created many economic and political uncertainties, which
could adversely affect our business and results of operations in ways that cannot presently be predicted. For example, the United States
Coast Guard is considering regulations designed to increase homeland security, which, if passed, could affect many of our properties and
require significant expenditures to bring such properties into compliance. Furthermore, given current conditions in the global insurance
markets, we are predominantly uninsured for losses and interruptions caused by terrorist acts and acts of war.

Compeiitive Pressuraes

Due to the fimited number of new markets opening for development in recent years, many casing operators are reinvesting in existing
markets to attract new customers, thereby increasing competition in those markets. As companies have completed expansion projects,
supply has typically grown at a faster pace than demand in some markets and competition has increased significantly. Furthermore, several
operators, including Harrah's, have announced plans for additional developments or expansions in some markets.

The Louisiana legislature has authorized the use of slot machines at horse racing tracks in three parishes in Louisiana. We operate
riverboat casinos in two of these marksts. The voters in these two parishes have approved the use of slot machines at racetracks located
in those parishes, and the fees and taxes to be impased on the slot machines have received legislative approval. In first quarter 2002, 2
horse racing facility, located in one of those parishes where the use of slot machines has been authorized and near our property in Lake
Charles, Louisiana, opened with approximately 1,500 machines. The horse racing facility is approximately twenty-five miles closer to the
Texas border and one of our major feeder markets in Texas than our property. Revenues and operating profit at our Lake Charles property
have been negatively impacted by the addition of this new competitor. In fourth quarter 2002, we acquired a controlling interest in
Louisiana Downs, a thoroughbred racetrack in Bossier City, Louisiana, which is in another of the parishes where the use of slot machines
has been authorized and is located near our Shreveport property.

In the third quarter of 2001, the State of Louisiana selected a competitor to receive the fifteenth and final riverboat gaming license
to be issued by the State, under the legislation legalizing riverboat gaming in that State. The competitar’s project is for a riverboat casino
in Lake Charles. Construction of that facility has not yet begun. We cannot predict the effect that the new riverboat competition in the
Lake Charles area will have on our operations there.

in Atlantic City, a competitor is constructing a 2,000-room hotel and casino that is expected to open in the summer of 2003,

A competitor in Missouri campleted a large casina expansion in third quarter 2002 that is located near our St. Louis property. In lllinais, the
tenth, and final, gaming license has been approved by the state and, depending on the locatian, may have an impact on our Chicagoland
operations. The short-term impact of increased competition in St. Louis has been negative.

In Octobar 2001, the legislature of the State of New York approved a bill authorizing six new tribal casinos in that state and video
lottery terminals at tracks. The measure allows the governar of New York to negotiate gaming compacts with American Indian tribes to
operate three casinos in the Catskills and three casinos in western New York.

In September 1999, the State of California and approximately sixty Indian tribes executed Class Il Gaming Compacts, which other
California tribes can join. The Compacts will allow each tribe to operate, on tribal trust fands, two casings with up to 2,000 slot machines
per tribe and unlimited house-banked card games. Our own agreements with Rincon are a result of these events {see Operating Results
and Development Plans, Managed Casinos and Other).

Other states are also considering legislation enabling the development and operation of casinos or casino-like operations.

Although, historically, the short-term effect of such competitive developments on our Company has been negative, we are not able
to determine the long-term impact, whether favorable or unfavorable, that these trends and events will have on current or future markets.
We believe that the geographic diversity of our operations; our focus on multi-market customer relationships; our service training, our
rewards and customer loyalty programs; and our continuing efforts to establish our brands as premier brands upon which we have built strong
customer loyalty have well-positioned us to face the challenges present within aur industry. We utilize the unique capabilities of WiNet, a
sophisticated nationwide customer database, and Total Rewards, a nationwide reward and recognition program. Total Rewards provides
our customers with a simple understanding of haw to earn cash, comps and ather benefits for playing at Harrah's Entertainment casinos.
We believe both of these marketing tools provide us with competitive advantages, particularly with players who visit more than one market.
All of our properties, with the exception of the Colorado property acquired in the Harveys acquisition, which is being sold, are integrated
into both WINet and Total Rewards.

Politizal Uncertaintics
The casing entertainment industry is subject to political and regulatory uncertainty. From time to time, individual jurisdictions have also
considered legislation or referendums which could adversely impact our operations. The likelihnaod or outcome of similar legislation and
referendums in the future cannot be predicted.

The casino entertainment industry represents a significant source of jobs, economic development and tax revenues to the various
jurisdictions in which casinos operate. From time to time, various state and federal legislators and officials have praposed changes in
tax laws, or in the administration of such laws, which would affect the industry. It is not possible to determine with certainty the scope
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or likelihood of possible future changes in tax laws or in the administration of such laws. if adopted, such changes could have a material
adverse effect on our financial results.

IEFECTS OF INFIATION

Inflation has had little effect on our historical operations over the past three fiscal years. Generally, we have not experienced any significant
negative impact on gaming volume or on wagering propensity of our customers as a result of inflationary pressures. Further, we have been
successful in increasing the amount of wagers and playing time of our casino customers through effective marketing programs. We have
also, from time to time, adjusted our required minimum bets at table games and changed the relative mix of slot machines in favor of
machines with higher average bets or holds. These strategies, supplemented by effective cost management programs, have offset

the impact of inflation on our operations over the past three fiscal years. In addition, inflation tends to increase the value of our casino
entertainment properties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ZSTINATES

We prepare our Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
Certain of our accounting policies, including the estimated lives assigned to our assets, the determination of bad debt, asset impairment
and self-insurance reserves, the purchase price allocations made in connection with our acquisitions and the calculation of aur income tax
liabilities, require that we apply significant judgment in defining the appropriate assumptions for calculating financial estimates. By their
nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Our judgments are based on our historical experience, terms of
existing contracts, our observance of trends in the industry, information provided by our customers and informatien available from other
outside sources, as appropriate. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from our estimates. The policies and esti-
mates discussed below are considered by management to be those in which our policies, estimates and judgments have a significant
impact on issues that are inherertly uncertain.

Property end Fquizment

We have significant capital invested in our property and equipment, which represents approximately 66% of our total assets. Judgments
are made in determining the estimated useful lives of assets, salvage values to be assigned o assets and if or when an asset has been
impaired. The accuracy of these estimates affects the amount of depreciation expense recognized in our financial results and whether

we have a gain or loss on the disposal of the asset. We assign lives to our assets based on our standard policy, which is established by
management as representative of the useful life of each category of asset. We review the carrying value of our property and equipment
whenever events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash
flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. The factors considered by management in performing this assessment
include current operating results, trends and prospects, as well as the effect of obsclescence, demand, competition and other economic
factors. In estimating expected future cash flows for determining whether an asset is impaired, assets are grouped at the operating unit
level, which for most of our assets is the individual casinc.

Goodwill and Cther Intangihie Assars

We have approximately $1.2 billion in goodwill and other intangible assets on our consolidated balance sheet resulting from our acquisition of
other businesses. A new accounting standard adopted in 2002 requires an annual review of goodwill and ather nonamortizing intangible assets
for impairment. We completed our initial assessment for impairment of goodwill and recorded an impairment charge in first quarter 2002,
We also completed our annual assessment for impairment in fourth quarter 2002 and determined that goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives have not been further impaired. The annual evaluation of goodwill and other nonamartizing intangible assets requires the use
of estimates about future operating results of each reporting unit to determine their estimated fair value. Changes in forecasted operations
can materially affect these estimates. Once an impairment of goodwill or ather intangible assets has been recorded, it cannot be reversed.
Total Rewards Paint Lability Program

Qur customer reward program, Total Rewards, offers incentives to customers who gamble at our casinos throughout the United States.
Customers receive cash-back and other offers made in the form of coupons that are mailed to the customer and redeemable on a subsequent
visit to one of our properties. The coupons generally expire thirty days after they are issued. Given the requirement of a return visit to redeem
the offer and the short-term expiration date, with no ahility to renew or extend the offer, we recognize the expense of these offers when
the coupon is redeemed.

In fourth quarter 2002, a decision was made to change our Total Rewards program in 2003 to give our customers greater flexibility
and control gver the rewards they receive for playing at our casinos. Customers will be able to accumulate, or bank, reward credits over
time that they may redeem at their discretion under the terms of the program. The reward credit balance will be forfeited if the customer
does not earn a reward credit over the prior six-month period. As a result of the ability of the customer to bank the reward credits under
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the revised program, our accounting for the Total Rewards program will change and we will accrue the expense of reward credits, after
consideration of estimated breakage, as they are earned. To implement this change in the program, an initial bank of reward credits will
be offered to our existing customers. The amount of credits to be offered has been calculated based upon 2002 tracked play at our casinos.
As a resuit of the dacision to change the program and extend this initial offer, an accrual of $6.9 million has been recorded in 2002 to
recognize our estimate of the expense of this implementation offer.

Bad Dbt Reserves

We reserve an estimated amount for receivables that may not be collected. Methodologies for estimating bad debt reserves range from
specific reserves to various percentages applied to aged receivables. Historical collection rates are considered, as are customer relation-
ships, in determining specific reserves. At December 31, 2002, we had $56.9 million in our bad debt reserve. As with many estimates,
management must make judgments about potential actions by third parties in establishing and evaluating our reserves for bad debts.

Self-insurance Accrvals

We are self-insured up to certain limits for costs associated with general liability, workers” compensation and employee medical coverage.
insurance claims and reserves include accruals of estimated settlements for known claims, as well as accruals of actuarial estimates

of incurred but not reported claims. At December 31, 2002, we had total self-insurance accruals reflected on our balance sheet of

$73.8 million. In estimating these costs, we consider historical loss experience and make judgments about the expected levels of costs
per claim. We also rely on independent consultants to assist in the determination of estimated accruals. These claims are accounted for
based on actuarial estimates of the undiscounted claims, including those claims incurred but not reported. We believe the use of actuarial
methods to account for these liabilities provides a consistent and effective way to measure these highly judgmental accruals; however,
changes in health care costs, accident frequency and severity and other factors can materially affect the estimate for these liabilities.

We continually monitor the potential for changes in estimates, evaluate our insurance accruals and adjust our recorded provisions.

RECENTLY 'SSUZD AXD PROFPOSED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
We implemented the following recently issued accounting standards and the impact, if any, of implementation is reflected in our
December 31, 2002, Cansalidated Financial Statements.

During first quarter 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force reached a consensus on the portion of Issue 00-22, "Accounting for ‘Points”
and Certain Other Time-Based or Volume-Based Sales Incentive Offers, and Offers for Free Products or Services to be Delivered in the
Future,” which addressed the income statement classification of the value of the points redeemable for cash awarded under point pro-
grams like our Total Rewards program. Per the consensus, which for our Company was effective retroactively to January 1, 2001, with prior
year restatement also required, the cost of these programs should be reported as a contra-revenue, rather than as an expense. We had
historically reported the costs of such points as an expense, so these costs were reclassified to be contra-revenues in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations to comply with the cansensus. This reclassification had no impact on Income from operations, Net income/{loss)
or Earnings/(loss) per share.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") has issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Cther Intangible Assets” SFAS No. 141 requires all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, to be accounted for
using the purchase methad. SFAS No. 142 provides new guidance an the recognition and amortization of intangible assets, eliminates the
amortization of goodwill and other assets with indefinite lives and requires annual assessments for impairment of goodwill and other non-
amortizing intangibles by applying a fair-value-based test. We completed our initial assessment for impairment of goodwill and other non-
amortizing intangibles and recorded an impairment charge in first quarter 2002. We also completed our annual assessment for impairment
in fourth quarter 2002 and determined that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives have not been further impaired. Upon adop-
tion of SFAS No. 142, our net income no longer reflects amortization of goodwill ar other intangible assets with indefinite lives, however,
certain other intangible assets will continue to be amortized. SFAS No. 142 was effective for years beginning after December 15, 2001,

During third quarter 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” which
we implemented on January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 144 establishes a single accounting model for the impairment or disposal of long-lived
assets, including discontinued operations. We have presented the Colorado property as discontinued operations in our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, "Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions—an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 72 and 144 and FASB Interpretation No. 9" which applies to all acquisitions of financial institutions except those between two ar more
mutual enterprises. SFAS No. 147 has no impact on our financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB published Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which elaborates on the existing disclosure requirements for most guarantees,
including foan guarantees such as standby letters of credit, It also clarifies that at the time a company issues a guarantee, the company
must recognize an initial liability for the fair value, or market value, of the obligations it assumes under that guarantee and must disclose
that information in its interim and annual financial statements. The initial recegnition and initial measurement provisions apply on a prospec-
tive basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements in the Interpretation are effective for
financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002.

The following recently issued accounting standards will be implemented in future periods.

During second quarter 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143 establishes
accounting standards for the recognition and measurement of an asset retirement obligation and its associated asset retirement cost.

Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. 2002 Annual Report 3%



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

it also provides accounting guidance for legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets. For our Company,
SFAS No. 143 will be effective in 2003, and its effect is not expected to be significant.

In second guarter 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections,” which all but eliminates the presentation in income statements of debt extinguishments
as extraordinary items. For our Company, SFAS No. 145 is effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. We plan to implement
SFAS No. 145 in the first quarter of 2003.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” which generally
requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a com-
mitment to exit or disposal plan. SFAS No. 148 is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 123,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair-value-based
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. SFAS No. 148 also requires disclosure in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reparted results.
The transition guidance and annual disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002, and
the annual disclosure provisions are implemented in our 2002 financial statements. We will implement the interim disclosure provisions in
first quarter 2003.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” {“FIN 46"), which
addresses consolidation by business enterprises where equity investors do not bear the residual ecanomic risks and rewards. These entities
have been commonly referred to as “special-purpose entities.” Companies are required to apply the provisions of FIN 48 prospectively for
all variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. For public companies, all interests acquired before February 1, 2003, must
follow the new rules in accounting periods beginning after June 15, 2003, FIN 48 is expected to have no impact on our results of
operations or financial position.

PRVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION RZFQRY: ACT
This Annual Report includes “forward-looking statements” intended to qualify for the safe harbor from liability established by the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or

"o won "o "o v "o "o

current facts. These statements contain words such as “may,” “will" “project.” “might.” “expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “intend,” "could,”
“would," “estimate,” “continue” or “pursue;” or the negative or other variations thereof or comparable terminology. In particular, they include
statements relating to, among other things, future actions, new projects, strategies, future performance, the cutcome of contingencies
such as legal proceedings and future financial results. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and
projections about future events.

We caution the reader that forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that cannot be predicted or quantified and,
consequently, actual results may differ materiafly from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such risks and
uncertainties include, but are nat limited to, the following factors as well as other factors described from time to time in our reports filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission:
the effect of economic, credit and capital market conditions on the economy in general, and on gaming and hotel companies in particular;
construction factors, including delays, zoning issues, environmental restrictions, soil and water conditions, weather and other hazards,
site access matters and building permit issues;
the effects of environmental and structural building conditions relating to the Company's properties;
our ability to timely and cost effectively integrate into our operations the companies that we acquire;
access to available and feasible financing;
changes in laws (including increased tax rates), regulations or accounting standards, third-party relations and approvals, and decisions
of courts, regufators and governmental bodies;
litigation outcomes and judicial actions, including gaming legislative action, referenda and taxation;
ahility of our customer-tracking and yield-management programs te continue to increase customer loyalty;
our ability to recoup costs of capital investments through higher revenues;
acts of war or terrorist incidents;
abnormal gaming halds; and
the effects of competition, including locations of competitors and operating and market competition.
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Any forward-looking statements are made pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1895 and, as such, speak only as
of the date made. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a resuft of new information,
future events or otherwise.
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To the Board of Dirscters and Stoclkholders
Hamah's Entortainment, inc.
Llas Yagas, Mevada

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries (“Harrah’s Entertainment”)
as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consclidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income/{loss), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the
responsibility of Harrah's Entertainment’s management. Our responsibility is to express an apinion on these financial statements based

on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We beligve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Harrah's
Entertainment as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended Becember 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Harrah's Entertainment changed its method of accounting for
goodwill and other intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” in 2002 and recorded a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the first quarter of 2002.

Roloitle ¢ Truche LLp

Las Vegas, Nevada
February 5, 2003

Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. 2002 Annual Report 383



December 31,

{In thousands, except share amounts) 2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $§ 495,304 $ 356,601
Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $58,865 and $60,958 83,741 110,683
Deferred income taxes (Note 10) 81,659 45,319
Income tax refunds receivable L3088 28,326
Prepayments and other £9,722 48,707
Inventories 22,763 22,117
Total current assets B8E,227 612,353
Land, buildings, riverboats and equipment
Land and land impravements 763,789 758,401
Buildings, riverboats and improvements 3,228,332 3,178,693
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,389,748 1,205,701
Construction in progress 78,875 164,289
5,735,312 5,307,084
Less: accumulated depreciation 19,5%8,881) (1,278,174)
4,232,331 4,027,910
Assets of discontinued operatiohs (Note 2) 28,057 39,542
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $32,046 (Notes 2 and 3) £23,313 947,678
Intangible assets (Note 3) 27,227 210,185
Investments in and advances to nonconsolidated affiliates (Note 16) 6,354 79,464
Deferred costs and other {Note 5) 233,848 211,450

$ 6,350,049 $ 6,128,582

LABILTIES AXT STCORHCLIIRS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 911,265 $ 122,049

Accrued expenses {Note 5) £33,374 410,108

Short-term debt (Note 6} €0,230 31,000

Current portion of long-term debt {Note 6) 1,663 1,583

Total current liabilities 82,4585 564,741
Liabilities of discontinued operations (Note 2) 3,405 4,167
Long-term debt (Note 6} 3,763,833 3,719,443
Deferred credits and other 182,833 173,677
Deferred income taxes (Note 10} 253,851 261,119
4,838,203 4,723,147

Minority interests 42,0417 31,322
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 2, 7 and 13 through 16)
Stockholders’ equity (Notes 4, 15 and 16)

Commen stock, $0.10 par value, authorized-360,000,000 shares, outstanding-109,708,831 and

112,322,143 shares (net of 34,416,375 and 28,977,890 shares held in treasury) 10,971 11,232

Capital surplus 1,224,8C3 1,143,125

Retained earnings 280,297 248,098

Accumulated other comprehensive loss {41%) (1,449)

Deferred compensation related to stock ownership plans {24,553} (26,893)

1,679,228 1,374,113
$ 3,330,049 $ 6,128,582

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets.
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a7) Stalements of Goeretions

Year Ended December 31,
{In thousands, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000
Revenues
Casino $ 3,585,418 $ 3,216,096 $ 2,852,048
Food and beverage 512,702 531,562 480,757
Rooms 237,693 300,735 270,313
Management fees ¢5.388 64,842 66,398
Other 154,322 139,966 142,072
Less: casino promotional allowances {717,82%) {563,412) {481,792)
Total revenues 4,135,393 3,689,789 3,329,796
Operating expenses
Direct
Casino 1,805,203 1,596,424 1,404,148
Food and beverage 247,338 234,874 228,002
Rooms 68,388 77,731 67,800
Depreciation and amortization 33,011 284,356 236,082
Write-downs, reserves and recoveries (Note 8)
Reserves for New Orleans casino - 2,322 220,000
Other 5,037 20,176 6,106
Project opening costs 1,898 13,105 8,258
Corporate expense 38,528 52,746 50,472
Headquarters relocation and reorganization costs (Note 9) - - 2,983
Equity in {income)/losses of nonconsolidated affiliates (Note 16) {4,084) (148) 57,935
Venture restructuring costs - 2,524 400
Amortization of intangible assets {Note 3) 4,493 24,985 21,540
Other $534,297 800,732 743,332
Total operating expenses 3,335,352 3,109,807 3,047,058
Income from operations 780,267 579,982 282,738
Interest expense, net of interest capitalized (Note 12) {243,220) {255,801) (227,139)
Losses on interests in nonconsolidated affiliates (Note 16) {6,238) (5,040) (41,626)
Other income, including interest income 2,137 28,219 3,866
Income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests 335,870 347,360 17,839
Provision for income taxes (Note 10) {197,292) (126,393) (15,415)
Minority interests {13,£85) {12,616) (13,768)
Income/{loss) from continuing operations 324,643 208,351 (11,344}
Discontinued operations, net of income tax expense of $837 and $344 (Note 2) 1,535 639 -
Income/{loss) before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 326,188 208,990 (11,348)
Extraordinary losses, net of income tax benefit of $13 and $388 (Note 11) - (23) (716)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of income tax benefit of $2,831 {Note 3) {21,938) - -
Net income/{loss) $ 235,028 $ 208,967 $  (12,060)
Earnings/(loss) per share—basic
Income/(loss) from continuing operations $ 2 $ 1.83 $ {0.09)
Discontinued operations, net 0.01 -
Extraordinary losses, net - - {0.01)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net {£.52) - -
Net income/{loss) $ 2.81 $ 1.84 $ (0.10)
Earnings/{loss) per share—diluted
Income/{loss) from continuing operations 3 2.36 $ 1.80 $ (0.09)
Discontinued operations, net 8.09 0.01 -
Extraordinary losses, net - - (0.01)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net {0.82) - -
Net income/{loss) 3 2.37 3 1.81 $ {0.10)
Weighted average common shares outstanding 791,292 113,540 117,190
Dilutive effect of stock compensation programs 2,322 2,168 -
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding 113,534 115,708 117,190

The accompanying Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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{Notes 4, 15 and 16/

Deferred
Accumulated  Compensation
Common Stock Cther Related to
Shares Capital Retained  Comprehensive Stock Comprehensive
(In thousands) QOutstanding Amount Surplus Eamings  Income/(Loss) Ownership Plans Total  Income/(Loss)
Balance—December 31, 1999 124,380 $12438 $ 987322 $ 512,539 $ (493)  $(25529) $ 1,486,277
Net loss , (12,060) (12,060) $ (12,060}
Unrealized loss on availabie-for-sale
securities, less deferred tax
benefit of $505 (824) (824) (824)
Realization of loss due to sale
of equity interest in foreign
subsidiary, net of tax
benefit of $148 191 191 191
Foreign currency adjustment 30 %0 90
Treasury stock purchases {12,397) (1,240) (276,367) {277,607)
Net shares issued under incentive
compensation plans, including
income tax benefit of $15,739 3,969 397 87,99 139 (14,876) 73,651
2000 Comprehensive Loss $ (12,603)
Balance—December 31, 2000 115,952 11,585 1,075,313 224,251 (1,036) (40,405) 1,269,718
Net income 208,967 208,967 $ 208,967
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities, less deferred tax
provision of $772 1,289 1,289 1,289
Realization of gain on
available-for-sale securities, net
of tax provision of $123 (226) (226) (226)
Other (1,476) {1,476) (1,476)
Treasury stock purchases (6,618) (662) (185,120) (185,782)
Net shares issued under incentive
compensation plans, including
income tax benefit of $18,013 2,988 299 67,812 13,512 81,623
2001 Comprehensive income $ 208,554
Balance—December 31, 2001 112,322 11,232 1,143,125 248,098 (1,449) (26,893) 1,374,113
Net income 235,029 233,028  $ 233,029
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities, less deferred tax
benefit of $239 (£42) h62y 642y
Other 1,676 1,478 1,476
Treasury stock purchases {3,275) 527} (222,330) {223,357)
Net shares issued under incentive
compensation plans, including
income tax benefit of $23,970 2,662 286 31,683 2,260 24,789
2002 Comprehensive Income § 236,633
Balance—December 31, 2002 109,709 $190,079 $1,226,808 $ 280,297 § (415)  ${24.663) $1,47%,098

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these copsolidated statements.
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(Note 12}

Year Ended December 31,
{In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income/{loss) $ 235,029 $ 208,967 $ {12,060
Adjustments to reconcile net income/{loss) to cash flows from operating activities
Earnings from discontinued operations, before income taxes 12,392) (983) -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, before income taxes 24,020 - -
Extraordinary losses, before income taxes - 36 1,104
Depreciation and amortization 331,658 330,932 282,110
Write-downs, reserves and recoveries 3,081 22,498 226,106
Deferred income taxes 89,885 102,476 (118,125)
Other noncash items 28,835 46,309 133,841
Minority interests’ share of net income $3,583 12,616 13,768
Equity in (income)/losses of nonconsolidated affiliates 14,024) (148) 57,935
Realized losses from interests in nonconsolidated affiliates 3,038 5,040 41,626
Net losses/(gains) from asset sales 1,781 (18,503} 1,213
et change in long-term accounts 13,257) (14,836) {44,772)
Net change in working capital accounts {33,739} 78,584 (35,178)
Cash flows provided by operating activities 738,579 772,988 547,568
Cash flows from investing activities
Land, buildings, riverboats and equipment additions {338,759) (529,786} {421,381)
Payments for businesses acquired, net of cash acquired {152,437) (251,873) {260,185)
Investments in and advances to nonconsolidated affiliates (34} (5,735) (314,921)
Proceeds from other asset sales 34,783 28,933 86,664
{Increase)/decrease in construction payables (6,323} 5,780 (1,703)
Sale of marketable equity securities for defeasance of debt - 2,182 58,091
Proceeds from sales of interests in subsidiaries - 1,883 131,475
Collection of notes receivable - - 14,285
Purchase of minority interest in subsidiary (8,512) -
QOther {7,162) (14,920) {11,907)
Cash flows used in investing activities {51€,039) (772,048) (719,582)
Cash flows from financing activities
Gross borrowings under lending agreements, net of financing costs of $655, $529 and $1,444 2,772,571 2,732,416 1,950,859
Gross repayments under lending agreements (2.728,125) {2,967,814) (1,447,434)
Purchases of treasury stock {223,357) (185,782} (277,607}
Proceeds from exercises of stock options 43,693 55,303 45,150
Early extinguishments of debt {28,290) (344,811) {213,063)
Scheduled debt retirements {1,652) (2,707) (3,472)
Minority interests’ distributions, net of contributions {12,183} (8) {14,003)
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes, net of discount and issue costs of $15,328 - 984,672 -
Net short-term {repayments)/borrowings, net of financing costs of $450 in 2000 - {184,000) 193,550
Premiums paid on early extinguishments of debt -~ {7,970} (1,104)
Dther {1,133) 126 4,759
Cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities (178,274) 79,425 237,635
Cash flows provided by/{used for) discontinued operations - 4,597 (22,966) ~
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 59,283 57,399 65,621
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 358,301 299,202 233,581
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 415,884 $ 356,601 $ 299,202

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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{Dollars in thousands, unless orhen/wse stated}
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In these footnotes, the wards “Company,” “Harrah’s Entertainment,” our” and “us” refer to Harrah's Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, uniess otherwise stated or the context requires otherwise.

METE 1-SURMALARY CF SIGNIFCART ACCOUNTING POLICIZ
Basis of Presenteteon and Trgznizaticn. We operate twenty-six casinos in thirteen states. As of December 31, 2002, our operations
included twelve land-based casings, ten riverboat or dockside casinos and four casinos on Indian reservations.

Frincipies of Consclifaiien. Our Consalidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Harrah's Entertainment and its subsidiaries
after elimination of all significant intercompany accounts and transactions. We follow the equity method of accounting for our investments
in 20% to 50% owned companies and joint ventures (see Note 16).

Cesh gnd Cash Egrivalents, Cash includes the minimum cash balances required to be maintained by a state gaming commission or
local and state governments which totaled approximately $25.4 million and $27.0 million at December 31, 2002 and 20071, respectively,
Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with a maturity of less than three months and are stated at the lower of cost ar market value.

Afowence for Doxathst Accounts. We reserve an estimated amount for receivables that may not be collected. Methodologies for
estimating bad debt reserves range from specific reserves to various percentages applied to aged receivables. Historical collection rates
are considered, as are customer relationships, in determining specific reserves. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, we had $56.9 million and
$61.0 million, respectively, in our bad debt reserve.

tmveniories. Inventories, which consist primarily of food, beverage and operating supplies, are stated at average cost.

tend, Belidings, Riverioats and Equwizmant. Land, buildings, riverboats and equipment are stated at cost. Land includes land held
for future development or disposition, which totaled $127.8 million and $129.8 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. We
capitalize the costs of improvements and repairs that extend the life of the asset. We expense maintenance and repair costs as incurred.
Interest expense is capitalized or internally constructed assets at our overall weighted average borrowing rate of interest. Capitalized
interest amounted to $3.5 millior, $3.3 million and $8.0 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

We depreciate our buildings, riverboats and equipment using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful life of
the asset or the related lease term, as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 40 years
Riverboats and barges 30 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 to 15 years

We review the carrying value of land, buildings, riverboats and equipment for impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual
disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized
equal to an amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. The factors considered by management in performing
this assessment include current operating results, trends and prospects, as well as the effect of obsolescence, demand, competition and
other economic factors. In estimating expected future cash flows for determining whether an asset is impaired, assets are grouped at the
operating unit level, which for most of our assets is the individual casing.

cedwil and Qther intangible Assets. We have approximately $1.2 billion in goodwill and other intangible assets on our balance sheet
resultmg from our acquisitions of other businesses. A new accounting standard adapted in 2002 requires an annual review of goodwill and
other ngnamartizing intangible assets for impairment. We completed our initial assessment for impairment of goodwill and other nonamor-
tizing intangibles and recorded an impairment charge in first quarter 2002. We also completed our annual assessment for impairment in
fourth quarter 2002 and determined that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives have not been further impaired. Once an
impairment of goodwill ar other intangible assets has been recorded, it cannot be reversed.

With the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on

January 1, 2002, we no longer amortize goodwill or ather intangible assets that are determined to have an indefinite fife. Under the provisions
of SFAS No. 142, goodwill acquired in a business combination for which the acquisition date was after June 30, 2001, should not be amortized;
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therefore, no goodwill refated to the acquisition of Harveys Casino Resorts (“Harveys”) was amortized in 2001. Prior to 2002, we amortized
goodwill and other intangibles, including trademarks, on a straight-fine basis over periods up to forty years. Intangible assets determined
to have a finite life are amortized on a straight-line basis over the determined useful life of the asset {see Note 3}. We use the interest
method to amortize deferred financing charges over the term of the related debt agreement.

Totz) Rewards Foint Uability Pregram. Our customer reward program, Total Rewards, offers incentives to customers who gamble

at our casinos throughout the United States. Customers receive cash-back and other offers made in the form of coupons that are mailed to
the customer and redeemable on a subsequent visit to one of our properties. The coupons generally expire thirty days after they are issued.
Given the reguirement of a return visit to redeem the offer and the short-term expiration date, with no ability to renew or extend the offer,
we recognize the expense of these offers when the coupon is redeemed.

In fourth quarter 2002, a decision was made to change our Total Rewards program in 2003 to give our customers greater flexibility
and control over the rewards they receive for playing at our casinos. Customers will be abie to accumulate, or bank, reward credits over
time that they may redeem at their discretion under the terms of the program. The reward credit balance will be forfeited if the customer
does not earn a reward credit over the prior six-manth period. As a result of the ability of the customer to bank the reward credits under
the revised program, our accounting for the Total Rewards program will change and we will accrue the expense of reward credits, after
consideration of estimated breakage, as they are earned. To implement this change in the program, an initial bank of reward credits will
be offered to our existing customers. The amount of credits to be offered has been calculated based upon 2002 tracked play at our casings.
As a result of the decision to change the program and extend this initial offer, an accrual of $6.9 million has been recorded in 2002 ta
recognize our estimate of the expense of this implementation offer.

Self-nsurznce Accruals., We are self-insured up to certain limits for costs associated with general liability, workers’ compensation and
employee medical coverage. Insurance claims and reserves include accruals of estimated settlements for known claims, as well as accruals
of actuarial estimates of incurred but not reported claims. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, we had total self-insurance accruals reflected
on our balance sheets of $73.8 million and $67.5 million, respectively. In estimating these costs, we consider historical loss experience
and make judgments about the expected lavels of costs per claim. We also rely on independent consultants to assist in the determination
of estimated accruals. These claims are accounted for based on actuarial estimates of the undiscounted claims, including those claims
incurred but not reported. We believe the use of actuarial methods to account for these liabilities provides a consistent and effective way to
measure these highly judgmental accruals; however, changes in health care costs, accident frequency and severity and other factors can
materially affect the estimate for these liabilities. We continually menitor the potential for changes in estimates, evaluate our insurance
accruals and adjust our recorded provisions.

Treasury Staci. The shares of Harrah's Entertainment common stack we hold in treasury are reflected in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets and our Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity and Comprehensive Incoma/(Loss) as if those shares were ratired.

Rlavenre Rscogriien, Casino revenues consist of net gaming wins. Food and beverage and rooms revenues include the aggregate
amounts generated by those departments at all consolidated casinos and casino hotels.
During first quarter 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force reached a consensus on the portion of Issue 00-22, “Accounting for
‘Points” and Certain Other Time-Based or Volume-Based Sales Incentive Offers, and Offers for Free Products or Services to be Delivered
in the Future,” which addressed the income statement classification of the value of the paints redeemable for cash awarded under point
programs like our Total Rewards program. Per the consensus, which for our Company was effective retroactively to January 1, 2001,
with prior year restatement also required, the cost of these programs should be reported as a contra-revenue, rather than as an expense.
We historically reported the costs of such paints as an expense, so we have reclassified these costs to be contra-revenues in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations ta comply with the consensus. The amount of expense reclassified for 2000 was $141.4 million.
Casino promotional allowances consist principally of the retail value of comglimentary food and beverages, accommodations, admis-
sions and entertainment provided to casine patrons. The estimated costs of providing such complimentary services, which we classify as
casino expenses through interdepartmental aliocations, were as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Food and beverage $ 222,223 $ 190,507 $ 172,560
Rooms 76,1817 64,779 51,927
Other 23,042 24,058 22,178
$ 327,238 $ 279,344 $ 246,665

Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. 2002 Annual Report S0



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
(Dolfars in thousands, unfess otherwise stated)

Ezrnings Per Skere. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share,” we compute our basic earnings per share
by dividing Net income/{loss) by the number of Weighted average comman shares outstanding during the vear. Our Diluted eamings per
share is computed by dividing Net income/(loss) by the number of Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding
during the year. Due to our net loss in 2000, Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding at December 31, 2000,
exclude comman stock equivalents of 481,338 and 1,407,362 refated to restricted stock and stock options, respectively, because of their
antidilutive effect. For each of the three years ended December 31, 2002, common stock equivalents consisted saolely of net restricted
shares of 631,532, 697,130 and 481,338, respectively, and stock options outstanding of 1,691,000, 1,471,400 and 1,407,362, respectively,
under our employee stock benefit plans. (See Note 15.)

Reclessificzlicns, We have reclassified certain amounts for prior years to conform with our presentation for 2002.

Use of Zetimeies. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires that we make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Qur actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2-ACDUTSITIDNS
In the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, we acquired two casino companies, a thoroughbred racetrack and the remaining
interest in a nonconsolidated subsidiary. We are accounting for each of the acquisitions as a purchase. Accordingly, the purchase price
is allocated to the underlying assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.
We determine the estimated fair valugs based on independent appraisals, discounted cash flows, quoted market prices and estimates
made by management, For each transaction, the allocation of the purchase price was, or will be, completed within cne year from the
date of the acquisition. To the extent that the purchase price exceeds the fair value of the net identifiable tangible and intangible assets
acquired, such excess is allocated to goodwill. For acquisitions completed prior to June 30, 2001, goodwill was amartized for periods
of up to forty years. With the adoption of SFAS No. 142 in 2002, we no longer amortize goodwill or intangible assets that are determined
to have an indefinite life.

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, goodwill acquired in & business combination for which the acquisition date was after
June 30, 2001, should nct be amortized; therefore, no goodwil! related to the Harveys acquisition was amortized in 2001, We accounted
for the Harveys acquisition under the provisions of SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.”

The table below summarizes our acquisition transactions completed in the three-year period ending December 31, 2002.

Total Goodwill ~ Number of
Company Date Acquired Purchase Price® Assigned Casinos Geographic Location
Players International, Inc. March 2000 $ 439 million  $ 204 million 3 Lake Charles, Louisiana

Metropolis, lllinois

St. Louis, Missouri
Harveys Casino Resorts July 2001 $ 712 million  $ 265 million 4 Central City, Colorado®

Council Bluffs, lowa (2)

Lake Tahoe, Nevada

JCC Holding Company June 2002
December 2002 $ 148 million none 1% New Orleans, Louisiana
Louisiana Downs, Inc. December 2002 $ 82 million § 64 million 1@ Bossier City, Louisiana

{a) Total purchase price includes the market value of debt assumed determined as of the acquisition date.
{b} Acquired additional 14% interest in June 2002 and the remaining 37% interest in December 2002.

{c) Acquired a thoroughbred racetrack that can be expanded to include sfot machines.

(d) This property is expected to be sold in the first half of 2003,

Players imtarnasicne), (ne. On March 22, 2000, we completed our acquisition of Players International, Inc. {“Players”), paying $8.50 in
cash far each outstanding share and assuming $150 million of Players 104% Senior Notes due 2005 (the “Players Notes”). Players operated
a dockside riverboat casing on the Ohio River in Metropolis, lllinois; two cruising riverboat casinos in Lake Charles, Louisiana; two dockside
riverboat casinos in Maryland Heights, Missouri; and a harness horse racetrack in Paducah, Kentucky. Players and Harrah's jointly operated
a landside hotel and entertainment facility at the property in Maryland Heights, a suburb of St. Louis. The operations of the Players facility
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in Maryland Heights were consolidated with the adjacent Harrah's operations in second quarter 2000, and the Lake Charles and Metropolis
facilities were subseguently converted to the Harrah's brand.

Approximately $2.3 million of the Players Notes were retired on April 28, 2000, in connection with a change of control offer. On
June 5, 2000, we purchased approximately $13.1 million of the Players Notes in the open market for the face amount pius accrued interest
and a premium. The remaining Players Notes were redeemed on June 30, 2000, for the face amount plus accrued interest and a premium.
We retired the Players Notes using proceeds from a $150 million credit agreement and our established debt programs.

Late in 2002, a pre-acquisition sales tax issue related to the Lake Charles property was favorably resolved, resulting in the reversal
of an accrual of approximately $6.5 million. Because we were beyond the time allowed to adjust goodwill related to this acquisition, the
reversal of this accrual was recorded as Write-downs, reserves and recoveries in our 2002 Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Harveys Casine Reserts. On July 31, 2001, we completed our acquisition of Harveys. We paid approximately $234 mitlion for the equity
interests in Harveys, assumed approximately $350 million in outstanding debt and paid approximately $18 million in acquisition costs.

We also assumed a $50 million contingent liability, which was dependent on the results of a referendum that was decided by the voters

in Pottawattamie County, lowa, in November 2002. The referendum, which re-approved gaming at racetracks and on riverboats for another
eight years, passed and we paid an additional $50 million in acquisition costs in fourth quarter 2002. We financed the acquisition, and
retired Harveys assumed debt, with borrowings under our established debt programs. The purchase included the Harveys Resort & Casino
in Lake Tahoe, Nevada, the Harveys Casino Hotel and the Bluffs Run Casino, both in Council Bluffs, lowa, and the Harveys Wagon Wheel
Hotel/Casino in Central City, Colorado.

In June 2002, the lowa Supreme Court issued an opinion that has the effect of reducing the gaming tax rate on gaming revenues
earned by casinos at racetracks operating in the state, including our Bluffs Run Casina. Casinos at racetracks were taxed at a higher rate
(32%) than the casinos on riverboats operating in lowa {20%). The Court ruled this disparity as uncenstitutional. The lowa Supreme Court
denied the State's petition for rehearing and remanded the case to the lowa District Court for determination of the appropriate relief. The
lower court subsequently ruled that all taxes paid above the 20% rate of the riverboats had to be refunded. The State appealed the lowa
Supreme Court's decision to the United States Supreme Court and in January 2003, the United States Supreme Court agreed to hear the
case. We have followed the instructions of the lowa Racing and Gaming Commission to pay taxes at the 20% rate for Bluffs Run. However,
given the uncertainty of this situation, we have continued to accrue gaming taxes at the 32% rate, and we will continue this practice until
this matter is clarified and our ultimate tax exposure is known. Depending upen future changes in the gaming tax rate imposed by the
lowa legislature, an additional payment based on a multiple of the calculated annual savings may be due to lowa West Racing Association
{"lowa West"), the entity holding the pari-mutuel and gaming license for the Bluffs Run Casino and with whom we have a management
agreement to operate that property. Any additional payment that may be due to lowa West would increase goadwill related to our
Harveys acquisition.

In fourth quarter 2002, we announced that we had entered into a definitive agreement to selt Harveys Wagon Wheel Hotel/Casino
in Central City, Colorado. Since acquiring Harveys, we evaluated the Colorado property and concluded that it is a nonstrategic asset for us.
Closing of the transaction is subject to customary regulatory approvals and is expected to close in the first half of 2003, This sale will not
have a material effect on our financial resuits. The Colorado property is presented in our Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued
operations, and our 2001 results have been reclassified to reflect that property as discontinued operaticns. The discontinued operations
generated revenues of $35.7 million and income from operations of $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. For the five
months of 2001 subsequent to the acquisition of Harveys, the discontinued operations generated revenues of $19.3 miflion and income
from operations of $1.3 million. Assets related to discontinued operations are recorded at their net realizable value of $23 1 million as of
December 31, 2002, and include land, buildings, equipment and leasehald improvements.

The fallowing table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition
of Harveys.

{In millions) At July 31, 2001
Current assets $ 595
Land, buildings, riverboats and equipment 348.9
Deferred costs and other 8.4
Intangible assets 173.0
Goodwill 265.1
Total assets acquired 854.9
Current liabilities 46.4
Long-term debt 3504
Deferred credits and other 96.6
Total liabilities assumed 4834
Net assets acquired $361.5

We acquired Harveys to further enhance our geographic distribution and to strengthen our access to target customers. The results of
Harveys' operations have been included in our Consolidated Financial Statements since the date of acquisition.

The intangible assets acquired include registered trademarks, certain gaming rights and development rights, which are not subject
to amortization. Other intangible assets, including customer relationships and certain contract rights, are amortized on a straight-ling basis.
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Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
{Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

We estimate useful lives of four to twenty-three years for the assets subject to amortization and have recorded amortization expense of
$4.5 million and $2.3 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Of the goodwill related to the Harveys acquisition, approximately $80 million is deductible for tax purposes.

Jazz Cesine Comzeany. On June 7, 2002, we acquired additional shares of the common stack of JCC Holding Company, which, together
with its subsidiary Jazz Casino Company LLC (collectively, "JCC”), owns and operates the Harrah's casino in New Orleans, Louisiana. The
acquisition of these shares increased our ownership in JCC from 49% to 63% and required a change of our accounting treatment for our
investment in JCC from the equity method to consolidation of JCC in our financial statements. We began consolidating JCC in our financial
results on June 7, 2002. On December 10, 2002, we acquired all remaining shares of JCC's stock to increase our wnership to 100%.

We paid $72.4 million ($10.54 per share) for the additional ownership interest in JCC, acquired approximately $45.8 million of
JCC's debt, assumed approximately $28.2 million of JCC's Senior Notes, which we subsequently retired, and incurred approximately
$1.9 million of acquisition costs. Ve financed the acquisition and retired JCC's debt with funds from various sources, including cash flows
from operations and borrowings under established debt programs.

The purchase price allocation arising from our acquisition of the additional ownership of JCC is in process and is expected to be
completed by third quarter 2003.

We acquired the remaining ownership interest in JCC in order to streamfine the decision-making process, which we expect will
allow us to take steps to improve business at the property more quickly.

City, Louisiana. The agreement gives Harrah's a 95% ownership interest in a company that now owns both Louisiana Downs and Harrah's
Shreveport. We plan to instafl slot machines at the racetrack and expand and renovate the entertainment facility, which will be the anly
land-based gaming facility in northern Louisiana. Plans call for Louisiana Downs to offer approximately 800 slot machines by the time
racing season begins in June 2003. We expect to open a new, permanent facility with approximately 1,500 slot machines by June 2004,

We paid approximately $81.5 million, including $29.3 milfion in short-term notes that were paid in full in January 2003 and $6.0 million
in equity interest in Harrah's Shreveport, for the interest in Louisiana Downs and approximately $0.1 million of acquisition costs. We financed
the acquisition with funds from various sources, including cash flows from operations and borrowings under established debt programs.
Since this acquisition was completed late in 2002, the purchase price allocation, including the equity interest in Harrah's Shrevepart that
was contributed to the new company that now owns both Louisiana Downs and Harrah's Shreveport, is in its very early stages and is
expected to be completed by fourth quarter 2003. The results of Louisiana Downs’ operations were included in our Consalidated Financial
Statements since the date of acquisition.

NOTE 3-ASTPTITN CF STATINENT QF FXYANCIAL ACCIUNTING STANTARDS ND. 142

We adopted SFAS No. 142, "Goocwill and Other Intangible Assets,” effective January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 142 provides new guidance
regarding the recognition and measurement of intangible assets, eliminates the amortization of certain intangibles and requires annual
assessments for impairment of intangible assets that are not subject to amortization.

We have completed our implementation review of the goodwill and other intangible assets arising from our prior acquisitions and
determined that impairment charges of $81.2 million, net of tax benefits of $2.8 million, were required. These charges, which were
recorded in first quarter 2002 and are reported in our Consalidated Statements of Operations as a change in accounting principle, relate to
goodwill and the trademark acquired in our 1999 acquisition of Rio Hotel and Casino, Inc. (“Rio”). Since the acquisition of Ric, competition
has intensified in the market and Rio has greatly reduced its emphasis on international high-end table games play, a significant component
of its business at the time of the acquisition. We determine the fair value of an operating unit as a function, or multiple, of earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization {"EBITDA”), a common measure used to value and buy or sell cash intensive businesses such
as casinos. The calculated multiple for Rio indicated that the fair value of the property, based on an EBITDA indicator, fell shart of the carry-
ing value, and recognition of an impairment of $86.0 million of goodwill was appropriate. The fair value of the Rio trademark was assessed
by applying a “relief from royalty” methodology, which ascribed a value to the trademark derived as the present value of a percentage of
forecasted future revenues. Because the Rio has not sustained the levet of revenues assumed in the original computation to assign a value
to the trademark, future revenue assumptions were reassessed and it was determined that the fair value of the trademark was $5.2 million,
net of tax benefit of $2.8 million, less than the carrying value. Rio's tangible assets were assessed for impairment applying the provisions of
SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” and our analysis indicated that the carrying value of the
tangible assets was not impaired.

We also completed our annual assessment for impairment as of September 30, 2002, and determined that goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives have not been further impaired.
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The following tables set forth information concerning our goodwill and other intangible assets as of December 31, 2002:

Balance at Balance at
December 31, Additions or Impairment December 31,
2001 Adjustments Losses 2002
Goodwill $947,678 $ 63,682 $ (86,045) $ 925,31¢
Nonamortizing intangible assets;
Trademarks $137,579 $ 10,000 $ {7,955) $ 138,524
Gaming rights 44,200 18,100 - £2,3¢
Development rights 5,000 {5,000) - -
Total $186,779 $ 23,100 $ (7.955) $ 209,924
Balance at
Gross Carrying Accumulated December 31,
Amount Amortization 2002
Amortizing intangible assets:
Contract rights $ 63,000 $(3,853) $ 58,947
Customer relationships 13,100 (2,944) 10,185
Total $ 76,100 ${6,797) $ 39,308

The aggregate amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 for those assets that will continue to be
amortized under provisions of SFAS No. 142 was $4.5 million and $2.3 million, respectively. Estimated annual amortizaticn expense for
those assets for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 is $4.8 million, $4.8 million, $4.8 miliion, $4.5 million

and $3.8 million, respectively.

With the adoption of SFAS No. 142, we ceased amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets that were determined to have an
indsfinite useful life. The information below depicts our results for the two years endad December 31, 2001 and 2000 on a pro forma basis,
as if SFAS No. 142 had been implemented at the beginning of that period.

Year Ended December 31,
{In thousands, except per share amounts) 2001 2000
Reported income/{loss) from continuing operations $ 208,351 $(11,344)
Add back: Goodwill amortization 19,581 18,460
Add back: Trademark amortization 3,080 3,080
Adjusted income from continuing operations 2,02 10,196
Discontinued operations, net of income tax expense of $344 and $0 639 -
Extraordinary items, net of income tax benefit of $13 and $388 (23) (716)
Adjusted net income $231,628 $ 9,480
Basic earnings per share:

Reported income/{loss) from continuing operations $§ 183 $ (0.09)
Goodwill amortization 0.17 0.16
Trademark amortization 0.03 0.02
Adjusted income from continuing operations 203 0.09
Discontinued operations, net 0.01 -
Extraordinary items, net - {0.01)
Adjusted net income $ 204 $ 008

Diluted earnings per share:
Reported income/{loss) from continuing operations $§ 180 $ {0.09)
Goodwill amortization 0.17 0.16
Trademark amortization 0.02 0.02
Adjusted income from continuing operations 1.99 0.09
Discontinued operations, net 0.0 -
Extraordinary items, net - {0.01)
Adjusted net income $ 200 § 008

XNOTE 4-STICHHOLDERS FQUITY

In addition to its common stock, Harrah's Entertainment has the following classes of stock authorized but unissued:

Preferred stock, $100 par value, 150,000 shares authorized
Special stock, $1.125 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized -
Series A Special Stock, 2,000,000 shares designated
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Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
{Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Harrah's Entertainment’s Board of Directors has authorized that one special stock purchase right (a “Right”) be attached to each outstanding
share of common stock. The Rights are not separable from the shares. These Rights are exercisable only if a person or group acquires
15% or more of Harrah's Entertainment commaon stock or announces a tender offer for 15% or more of the common stock. Each Right
entitles stockholders to buy one two-hundredth of a share of Series A Special Stock of the Company at an initial price of $130 per Right.
If a person acquires 15% or mare of the Company’s outstanding common stock, each Right entitles its holder to purchase comman stock
of the Company having a market value at that time of twice the Right's exercise price. Under certain conditions, each Right entitles its
holder to purchase stock of an acquiring company at a discount. Rights held by the 15% holder will become void. The Rights will expire
on October 5, 2006, unless earlier redeemed by the Board at one cent per Right.

During the past three years, our Board of Directors has autharized four plans whereby we have purchased shares of the Company's
common stock in the open market from time to time as market canditions and other factors warranted. The table below summarizes the
four plans.

Plan Number of Shares Number of Shares Purchased Average Price
Authorized Authorized As of December 31, 2002 Per Share
April 2000 12.5 million 12.5 million $25.08
July 2001 6.0 million 6.0 million 37.15
July 2002 2.0 million 1.4 million 39.24
November 2002 3.0 million None /A

The July 2002 authorization expired December 31, 2002, and the November 2002 authorization expires December 31, 2003. The repurchases
were funded through available operating cash flows and borrewings from our established debt programs.

Under the terms of our employee stock benefit programs, we have reserved shares of Harrah's Entertainment common stock for
issuance under the 2001 Executive Stock Incentive and 2001 Broad-based incentive Plans. (See Note 15 for a description of the plans.)
The 2001 Executive Stock incentive Plan is an equity compensation plan approved by our stockholders and the 2001 Broad-based Incentive
Plan is an equity compensation plan not approved by our stockholders. The shares held in reserve for issuance or grant under the Harrah's
Entertainment, Inc. 1990 Stack Option Plan and Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. 1990 Restricted Stock Plan (collectively, “Harrah's Former
Plans”) were transferred to the 2001 Executive Stock Incentive Plan in 2001. As of December 31, 2002, 4,431,877 shares were authorized
and unissued under the 2001 Executive Stock Incentive Plan and 10,325 shares were authorized and unissued under the 2001 Broad-based
Incentive Plan. No additional shares will be authorized under the 2001 Broad-based Incentive Plan. Of the 4,431,877 shares available for
grant under the 2001 Executive Stock Incentive Plan, 62,548 shares were available for grants as an award other than an option.

NOTE 5-DITAN CF CERTAIN BALANCE SHEET AGCOUNTS
Deferred costs and other consisted of the following as of December 31:

2002 2001
Cash surrender value of life insurance {Note 15) $ 65,109 $ 62,143
Deferred finance charges, net of amortization of $5,573 and $4,769 17,857 22,452
Other 154,282 126,855
$ 232,248 $ 211,450

Accrued expenses consisted of the following as of December 31:
2002 2001
Payroll and other compensation $ 141,921 $123,290
Insurance claims and reserves 73,783 67,516
Accrued interest payable 44,835 50,456
Accrued taxes 42,607 39,085
Other accruals 980,3¢8 129,782
$ 433,574 $ 410,109
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NOTE 5-DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the following as of December 31:

2002 2001
Bank Facility
2.2%-3.3% at December 31, 2002, maturities to 2004 $ 1,285,503 $ 1,380,000
Secured Debt
7.1%, maturity 2028 AR 96,173
5.3%-6.6%, maturities to 2031 788 1,943
Unsecured Senior Notes
7.125%, maturity 2007 480,623 498,070
7.5%, maturity 2009 £8,713 498,499
8.0%, maturity 2011 483,323 494,971
Unsecured Senior Subordinated Notes
7.875%, maturity 2005 780,8T 750,000
Other Unsecured Borrowings
1.9%—2.0%, maturity 2003 189,723 -
Capitalized Lease Obligations
7.6%—10.0%, maturities to 2006 o84 1,370
3,784,532 3,721,026
Current portion of long-term debt {5,439) {1,583)
$ 3,733,238 $3,719,443

As of December 31, 2002, aggregate annual principal maturities for the four years subsequent to 2003 were: 2004, $14 billion; 2005,
$751.7 million; 2008, $1.7 million and 2007, $500.1 million.

Revolving Credit Fecilities. As of December 31, 2002, the Company had revolving credit and letter of credit facilities (the “Bank Facility”),
which provide us with borrowing capacity of $1.857 billion. The Bank Facility consists of a five-year $1.525 biflion revolving credit and letter
of credit facifity maturing in 2004 and a separate $332 million revolving credit facility, which is renewable annually at the borrower’s and
lenders’ options. As of December 31, 2002, the Bank Facility bore interest based upon 80 basis points over LIBOR for current borrowings
under the five-year facility and 85 basis points over LIBOR for the 364-day facility. In addition, there is a facility fee for borrowed and unbor-
rowed amounts, which is currently 20 basis points on the five-year facility and 15 basis points on the 364-day facility. The interest rate and
facility fee are based on our current debt ratings and leverage ratio and may change as our debt ratings and leverage ratio change. There
is an option on each facility to borrow at the prime rate. As of December 31, 2002, $1.286 billion in borrowings were outstanding under the
Bank Facility, with an additiona! $80.9 miflion committed to back letters of credit. After consideration of these barrowings, $490.8 million
of additional borrowing capacity was available to the Company as of December 31, 2002,

Commercial Papsz To provide the Company with cost-effective borrowing flexibility, we have a $200 million commercial paper program

that is used to borrow funds for general corporate purposes. Although the debt instruments are short-term in tenor, they are classified as
long-term because the commercial paper is backed by our Bank Facility and we have committed to keep available capacity under our Bank
Facility in an amount equal ta or greater than amounts borrowed under this grogram. At December 31, 2002, $139.7 million was outstanding
under this program.

‘ssuance of New Debl. In addition to our Bank Facility, we have issued debt and entered into credit agreements to provide for short-
term borrowings at lower interest rates than the rates paid under our Bark Facility, to provide the Company with cost-effective borrowing
flexibility and to replace short-term, floating-rate debt with long-term, fixed-rate debt. The table below summarizes the face value of debt
obligations entered into in the last three years and outstanding at December 31, 2002,

fin millions) Face Value Outstanding
Debt lssued Matures at December 31, 2002
Uncommitted Line of Credit Agreements 2002 2003 $ 310
Commercial Paper 2002 2003 139.7
8.0% Senior Notes January 2001 2011 500.0
7125% Senior Notes June 2001 2007 500.0
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Dtinguishmaerts of Dokt We have used the funds from the new debt discussed above, as well as proceeds from our Bank Facility, to
retire certain of our outstanding debt, in particular those debt obligations assumed in our acquisition transactions, to reduce our effective
interest rate and/or lengthen maturities. The following table summarizes the debt obligations that we have retired over the last three years:

{In miliions)

Issuer Date Retired Debt Extinguished Face Value Retired
JCC Cecember 2002 Senior Notes due 2008 $ 282
Harveys September 2001 10.625% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2006 150.0
Showboat August 2001 13% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2009 2.1
Harveys July 2001 Credit facility due 2004 192.0
Players June 2000 10.875% Senior Notes due 2005 150.0
Showboat ~ June 2000 9.25% First Mortgage Bonds due 2008 56.4

The premiums paid to the holders of the debts retired and the write-off of the related unamortized deferred finance charges are reportad
on the Consolidated Statements of Operations as Extraardinary losses (see Note 11). We recorded the liabilities assumed in acquisition
transactions at their fair value at the date of consummation of the acquisition. The premium charged to Extraordinary losses as a result of
the retirement of these assumed debts equaled the difference between the consideration paid to the holders of the notes and the carrying
value we assigned to the notes at the time of purchase.

Shortterm 22kt In a program designed for short-term borrowings at lower interest rates than the rates paid under our Bank Facility,
we have entered into an uncommitted line of credit agreement with a lender whereby we can borrow up to $31.0 million for periods of
thirty days or less. At December 31, 2002, we had borrowed $31.0 million under this agreement. Borrowings bear interest at current
market rates. Interest rates on amounts borrowed under these agreements during 2002 ranged from 2.4% to 3.1%. This agreement does
not decrease our borrowing capacity under our Bank Facility.

At December 31, 2002, we had $29.3 million of short-term debt related to our acquisition of Louisiana Downs in December 2002.
This debt was paid in full in January 2003.

In June 2000, we entered into a 364-day credit agreement {the “Credit Agreement”) with a lender whereby we borrowed $150 million
to redeem the Players Notes. Interest rates, facility fees and covenants in the Credit Agreement were identical to those provisions cantained
in our Bank Facility. The Credit Agreement was retired in January 2001, using funds from the 8.0% Senior Notes.

Perent Compery Brarantes of Suhet{izry Takt. Harrah's Operating Company, Inc. {“HOC"), the principal asset of Harrah's Entertainment,
is the issuer of certain debt securities that have been guaranteed by Harrah's Entertainment. Due to the comparability of HOC's consolidated
financial information with that of Harrah's Entertainment, complete separate financial statements and other disclosures regarding HOC

have not been presented. Management has determined that such information is not material to holders of HOC's debt securities. Harrah's
Entertainment has no independent assets or operations, its guarantee of HOC's debt securities is full and unconditional and its only other

subsidiary is minor.

Fair Miaries Va'ua, Based on the borrowing rates available as of December 31, 2002, for debt with similar terms and maturities and
market guates of our publicly traded debt, the fair value of our long-term debt at December 31 was as follows:

2002 2001
Carrying Market Carrying Market
{In millions) Value Value Value Value
Qutstanding debt $12,764.3) $(4,031.3) $(3,721.0) $(3,826.1)
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NOTE 7-LIASES
We lease both real estate and equipment used in our operations and classify those leases as either operating or capital leases following
the provisions of SFAS Na. 13, “Accounting for Leases”” At December 31, 2002, the remaining lives of our operating leases ranged from one
to twenty-two years, with various automatic extensions totaling up to fifty-two years.

Rental expense associated with operating leases is charged to expense in the year incurred and was included in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Noncancelable

Minimum $ 24,407 $ 22,521 $ 21,872
Contingent 7,032 5,601 4,867
Sublease 1283) {602) (571}
Other 42,123 34,921 18,678
$ 83,278 $62,441 $ 44,846

QOur future minimum rental commitments as of December 31, 2002, were as follows:
Noncancelable
Operating Leases
2003 $ 40516
2004 36,092
2005 34,532
2006 33,622
2007 32,776
Thereafter 482,240
Total minimum lease payments $ 659,778

In addition to these minimum rental commitments, certain of these operating leases provide for contingent rentals based on a percentage
of revenues in excess of specified amounts. In 2002, we terminated a June 2000 agreement in which we sold and leased-back corporate
aircraft. Pursuant to its terms, the agreement was accounted for as an operating lgase. The aircraft that was leased under that agreement
is now included in our Furniture, fixtures and equipment.

NOTE B-WRITE-DOWNS, RESEAVES AND RZCTVERIES
QOur operating results include various pretax charges to record asset impairments, contingent liability reserves, project write-offs and recoveries
at time of sale of previously recorded reserves for asset impairment. The components of Write-downs, reserves and recoveries were as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Reserves for New Orleans casino $ - $ 2322 $ 220,000
Write-off of abandoned assets and other costs 6,257 8,484 2,800
Charge for structural repairs at Reno 3,250 - -
impairment of long-lived assets 1,587 8,203 5,813
Termination of contracts 168 4,060 2,505
Recoveries from previously impaired assets and reserved amounts \2,087) {571) (5,012)
Settlement of sales tax contingency {8.434) - -
$ 5,281 $ 22,498 § 226,106

We account for the impairment of long-lived assets to be hefd and used by evaluating the carrying value of the long-iived assets in relation
to the operating performance and future undiscounted cash flows of the underlying operating unit when indications of impairment are
present. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are evaluated in relation to the estimated fair value of such assets less costs to sell.

XOTE D-HEADTVARTERS RELOCAT.EN AND REDRACANIZATION TISTS

During August 1999, we began the move of our corporate headquarters to Las Vegas, Nevada, from Memphis, Tennessee. The move was
completed in 2000 and the costs of the relocation were expensed as incurred. Certain headquarters employees eiected not to accept an
offer to move, and the positions of other employees were eliminated as part of a staff reorganization conducted in advance of the move. The
expenses for the severance payable to these employees were accrued when the employees became eligible for the severance payments.
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MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
{Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 10-INGONE TAXES

Qur federal and state income tax provision (benefit) allocable to our Consolidated Statements of Operations and our Consalidated Balance

Sheets line items was as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Income from centinuing operations before income taxes and minority interests $ 197,282 $ 126,393 $ 15,415

Discontinued operations 837 344 -

Extraordinary losses - (13) (388)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle {2,831) - -

Stockhelders’ equity

Unrealized gain/(loss) on aveilable-for-sale securities (238) 772 (505)

Other 210 {800) -
Compensation expense for tax purposes in excess of amounts recognized

for financial reporting purposes (23,570) (18,013) (15,739)

$ 977,889 $ 108,683 $(1,217)

Income tax expense attributable to Income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests consisted of the following:

2002 2007 2000
Current
Federal $ 145,770 $ 16,035 $ 128,643
State 23,388 7,882 4,897
Deferred 28,153 102,476 {118,125)
$ 187,292 $ 126,393 $ 15415
The differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax rate expressed as a percentage of Income from
continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests were as follows:
2002 2001 2000
Statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increases/{decreases} in tax resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 2.5 15 10.7
Goodwill amortization - 1.8 338
Foreign taxes ‘ - - 296
Tax credits {0.3) (0.5) (11.2)
Political contributions 0.1 0.1 2.0
Officers’ life insurance ‘ 8.2 0.3 8.0
iVieals and entertainment 0.3 0.3 5.9
Federal income tax settlement - (0.8) (3.3)
Minority interests in partnership eamings (3.9) (1.3) {27.0)
Other €.2) - 29
Effective tax rate 26.8% 36.4% 86.4%
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The components of our net deferred tax balance included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets wers as follows:

2002 2001
Deferred tax assets
Compensation programs $ 35,365 $ 59,538
Bad debt reserve 20,084 21,759
Self-insurance reserves 8,037 8,111
Deferred income 488 m
Project opening costs 29,819 3,788
Net operating losses 16,378 16,580
Other 28,074 17,200
Valuation allowance 114,217 {14,088)
524,177 112,999
Deferred tax liabilities
Property {278,352) {247,829)
fianagement contract {2C,547) -
Intangibles {73,10%) {74,773)
{nvestments in nonconsolidated affiliates 22,771 {6,097)
(338,178} {328,798)
Net deferred tax liability $ (202,302) $ (215,800}
NOTE 11 -BTRADRDINARY ITEMS
The components of our net extraordinary losses were as follaws:
2002 2001 2000
Losses on early extinguishments of debt $- $ (36) $(1,104)
income tax benefit - 13 388
Extraordinary losses, net of income taxes $- $(23) $ {716

NOTE 12~ SUBPLEMENTAL CASE FLOW INFCRMATION
The increase in Cash and cash equivalents due to the changes in long-term and working capital accounts was as follows:

The extraordinary fosses an early extinguishments of debt are due to the premiums paid to the halders of the debt retired and the write-off
of related unamortized deferred finance charges. (See Note 6 for information regarding the specific debt issues retired in each period.)

2002 2001 2000
Long-term accounts

Deferred costs and other $ (38,317) $ 68,439 $ (40,504)
Deferred credits and other 32,260 (83,275) (4,268)
Net change in long-term accounts $ {3,237} $(14,836) $(44,772)

Working capital accounts
Receivables $ 14,478 $ 12,884 $(39,072)
Inventories 32 3,329 2,524
Prepayments and other 81,768 26,490 (10,710)
Accounts payable {3,376) {17,394) 11,887
Accrued expenses {148,937) 53,275 193
Net change in working capital accounts $ (53,738 $ 78,584 $(35,178)
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Surrlemantia: Dlsclasure ef Cash Pl {gr Interest and Taxas
The following table reconciles our Interest expense, net of interest capitalized, as reported in the Consofidated Statements of Gperations,
to cash paid for interest:

2002 2001 2000

Interest expense, net of interest capitalized $ 240,229 $ 255,801 $227,139
Adjustments to reconcile to cash paid for interest

Net change in accruals (5,837 (33,869} (17,988)

Amortization of deferred finance charges {5,573) (4,769) {4,185}

Net amortization of discounts and premiums {1,598) {913) 70

Cash paid for interest, net of amount capitalized $ 223,210 $ 216,250 $ 205,036

Cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds $ 145,873 $ (27,974) $ 90,220

NOTEZ 12-C00 SENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Comtracival Gommitmants. We continue to pursue additional casino development opportunities that may require, individually and in the
aggregate, significant commitments of capital, up-front payments to third parties, guarantees by Harrah's Entertainment of third-party debt
and development completion guarantees.

We may guarantee all or part of the debt incurred by Indian tribes, with which we have entered into a management contract, to fund
development of casinas on the Indian lands. For all existing guarantees of Indian debt, we have obtained a first lien on certain personal
property {tangible and intangible) of the casino enterprise. There can be no assurance, however, that the value of such property would
satisfy our obligations in the event these guarantees were enforced. Additionally, we have received limited waivers from the Indian tribes
of their sovereign immunity to allow us to pursue our rights under the contracts between the parties and to enforce collection efforts
as to any assets in which a security interest is taken. The aggregate outstanding balance as of December 31, 2002, of Indian debt that
we have guaranteed was $227.8 million. The outstanding balance of all of our debt guarantees at December 31, 2002 is $239.0 milion.
Our maximumn obligation under all of our debt guarantees is $265.0 million. Our obligations under these debt guarantees extend through
January 2008.

Excluding debt guarantees and guarantees related to New Orleans (see Note 16), as of December 31, 2002, we had commitments
and contingencies of $313.9 million, including construction-related commitments.

The agreements under which we manage casinos on ndian lands contain provisions required by law which provide that & minimum
monthly payment be made to the tribe. That obligation has priority over scheduled payments of borrowings for development costs and
over the management fee earned and paid to the manager. In the event that insufficient cash flow is generated by the operations of
the Indian-owned properties to fund this payment, we must pay the shortfall to the tribe. Subject to certain limitations as to time, such
advances, if any, would be repaid to us in future periods in which operations generate cash flow in excess of the required minimum
payment. These commitments will terminate upon the occurrence of certain defined events, including termination of the management
contract. As of December 31, 2002, the aggregate monthly commitment for the minimum guaranteed payments pursuant to these
contracts, which extend for periods of up to sixty-one months from December 31, 2002, is $1.2 million. The maximum exposure for
the minimum guaranteed payments to the tribes is unlikely to exceed $34.3 million as of December 31, 2002.

Savararse Agrearants. As of December 31, 2002, the Company has severance agreements with thirty-five of its senior executives,
which provide for payments to the executives in the event of their termination after a change in contral, as defined. These agreements
provide, among other things, for a compensation payment of 1.5 to 3.0 times the executive’s average annual compensation, as defined,

as well as for accelerated payment or accelerated vesting of any compensation or awards payable to the executive under any of Harrah's
Entertainment’s incentive plans. Tke estimated amount, computed as of December 31, 2002, that would be payable under the agreements
to these executives based on the compensation payments and stock awards aggregated approximately $107.7 million. The estimated
amount that would be payable to these executives does not include an estimate for the tax gross-up payment, provided for in the agree-
ments, that would be payable to the executive if the executive becomes entitled to severance payments which are subject to a federal

excise tax imposed on the executve.
Sell{nsurznce. We are self-insued for various levels of general liability, workers' compensation and employee medical coverage.

Insurance claims and reserves inc ude accruals of estimated settlements for known claims, as well as accruals of actuarial estimates of
incurred but not reported claims.
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NCTE 14-LUTIGATIN
We are involved in various inquiries, administrative proceedings and litigation relating to contracts, sales of property and other matters
arising in the normal course of business. While any proceeding or fitigation has an element of uncertainty, management believes that the
final outcome of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or our results of operations.

NOTE 15-EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
We have established a number of employee benefit programs for purposes of attracting, retaining and motivating our employees. The following
is a descriptian of the basic components of these programs.

Steck Iption Plans. Our employees may be granted options to purchase shares of common stock under the Harrah's Entertainment 2001
Executive Stock Incentive Plan or the 2001 Broad-based Incentive Plan (collectively, “SOP"). Beginning with the adoption of the SOP grants
will typically vest in equal installments over a three-year period. Previously, pursuant to Harrah's Former Plans, grants typically vested in
equal instaliments over a four-year period and collectively grants allow the option holder to purchase stock over specified periods of time,
generally seven toten years from the date of grant, at a fixed price equal to the market value at the date of grant. No options may be
granted under the SOP after May 2011.

A summary of activity of the 2001 Executive Stock Incentive Plan and Harrah's Former Plans, which are equity compensation plans
approved by our stockholders, for 2000, 2001 and 2002 is as follows:

Number of
Weighted Avg. Common Shares

Exercise Price Options Available

{Per Share) Outstanding For Grant

Balance—December 31,1999 $18.14 13,705,299 1,681,285
Additional shares authorized N/A - 1,800,000
Granted 28.10 3,109,602 (3,109,602)
Exercised 16.27 (2,968,539} -
Canceled 20.04 (1,070,064) 1,070,064
Rio plans cancellations 18.35 {20,500} -~
Balance~December 31, 2000 21.08 12,755,798 1,441,747
Additional shares authorized N/A - 3,900,000
Restricted shares transferred from Harrah's Former Plans N/A - 766,509
Restricted shares issued N/A - (40,521)
Restricted shares canceled N/A - 328,685
Granted 26.39 774,075 {774,075)
Exercised 17.07 (3,240,426) -
Canceled 23.29 (1,596,869) 1,596,869
Rio plans cancellations 17.16 (8,800) -
Balance—December 31, 2001 22.65 8,683,778 7,219,214
Additional shares autherized RY/A - -
Restricted shares issued NY/A - {221,887)
Restricted shares canceled /A - 78,081
Granted 43.80 2,992,580 {2,910,530)
Exercised £0.40 12,590,878} -
Canceled 20.08 {287,283) 287,083
Rio plans cancellations 18.88 {2,220 -
Balance-December 31, 2002 $ 3%.390 8,814,507 4,431,877

Of the 4,431,877 shares available for grant at December 31, 2002, up to 62,548 of these shares are available for grant as awards other
than as stock options.
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The following table summarizes additional information regarding the options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

2002 2001 2000
Options exercisable at December 31 2,344,103 2,955,787 3,925,509
Weighted average fair value per share of options granted per year $17.34 $12.33 $14.30
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Number Remaining Average Number Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Contract Life Exercise Frice Exercisable Exercise Price
$12.00-8 35.55 5,976,316 6.7 years $23.94 2,343,606 $21.29
40.33— 4332 11,910 7.7 years 41.93 500 40.33
46.14- 49.32 2,826,371 6.5 years 46.81 - -
8,814,597 2,344,106

200,000 shares were authorized for issuance under the 2001 Broad-based Incentive Plan, which was established in 2001 and is an equity
compensation plan not approved by stockholders. No additional shares will be authorized under the 2001 Broad-based Incentive Plan.
A summary of activity of this plan is as follows:

Number of

Weighted Avg. Common Shares
Exercise Price Options Available
{Per Share) Outstanding For Grant
Balance - December 31, 2001 N/A - 200,000
Additional shares authorized N/A - -
Granted £7.03 1€8,77% {193,775)
Exercised RYA - -
Cancelled 47.93 {7,1CT} 7,9C0
Balance - December 31, 2002 $47.03 189,673 ©T,32%

As allowed under the provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” we apply the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Qpinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock ssued to Employees,” and related interpretations to account for the SOP and,
accordingly, do not recognize compensation expense. Furthermore, no stock-based employee compensaticn cost is reflected in net income,
as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.
Had compensation expense for the SOP been determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123, total stock-based employee compensation
expense, net of related tax effects, would have been $20.2 million, $8.0 million and $15.8 million, for the years ended 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively, and our pro forma Net income/(loss) and Earnings/(loss) per share for the indicated periods would have been:

2002 2001 2000
As Pro As Pro As Pro
Reported Forma Reported Forma Reported Forma
Net income/{loss) $233,029 $214828 $208957 $200,878 ${12,060) $(27,834)
Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic 2,91 7.83 1.84 1.77 (0.10) (0.24)
Diluted 2.07 1.89 1.81 1.74 (0.10) (0.24)

The fair value of each option gran® is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted average assumptions:

2002 2001 2000
Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected stock price volatility 32.0% 42.0% 42.0%
Risk-free interest rate 3.7% 4.3% 5.8%
Expected average life of options (years) 3 6 ]
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Restricted Stock. Employees may be granted shares of common stock under the SOP. Restricted shares granted under the SOP
are restricted as to transfer and subject to forfeiture during a specified period or periods prior to vesting. The shares generally vest in
equal installments over a period of three years. No awards of restricted shares may be made under the current plan after May 2011,

The compensation arising from a restricted stock grant is based upon the market price at the grant date. Such expense is deferred and
amortized to expense over the vesting period.

The Company has issued Time Accelerated Restricted Stock Award Plan (“TARSAP”) awards to certain key executives. The initial
TARSAP program was completed in January 2002, During 2000, 2001 and 2002 additional TARSAP awards were issued to certain key
executives, which will vest on January 1, 2007, if the executive continues in active employment until that date. These shares are eligible
for earlier annual vesting beginning in 2003 over four years (three years for shares awarded in 2002) based on the Company’s financial
performance in each of the years 2002 through 2005, and the remaining unvested shares will vest on January 1, 2007. The expense
arising from TARSAP awards is being amortized to expense over the periods in which the restrictions lapse.

The number and weighted average grant-date fair value of restricted shares granted, and the amortization expense recognized, during
2002, 2001 and 2000, including the TARSAP awards, were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Number of shares granted 221,931 12,876 1,306,398
Weighted average grant price per share $43.77 $31.00 $2517
Amortization expense (in millions) $ 7.8 $ 82 $ 123
Unvested shares as of December 31 1,458,847 1,783,535 2,298,803

Savings and Retiremsnt Plan. We maintain a defined contribution savings and retirement plan, which, among other things, allows
pretax and after-tax contributions to be made by employees to the plan. Under the plan, participating employees may elect to contribute
up to 20% of their eligible eamings, the first 6% of which is fully matched. Amounts contributed to the plan are invested, at the partici-
pant’s direction, in up to fourteen separate funds, including a Harrah's company stock fund. Participants become vested in the matching
contribution over five years of credited service. Our contribution expense for this plan was $29.2 million, $26.6 milfion and $25.3 miflion
in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Delerred Compansation Plans. Harrah's maintains deferred compensation plans (collectively, “DCP") and an Executive Supplemental
Savings Plan {"ESSP”) under which certain employees may defer a portion of their compensation. Amounts deposited into these pians are
unsecured liabilities of the Company. Amaunts deposited into DCP eamn interest at rates approved by the Human Resources Committee

of the Board of Directors. The ESSP is a variable investment plan which aflows the employee to direct their investments by chaosing

from several investment afternatives. The total kiability included in Deferred credits and other for these plans at December 31, 2002 and
2001 was $86.4 million and $82.1 million, respectively. in connection with the administration of one of these plans, we have purchased
company-owned life insurance policies insuring the lives of certain directars, officers and key employees.

Mult-emzloyer Pansion Plans. Approximately 4,300 of our employees are covered by union spansered, collectively bargained
multi-employer pension plans. We contributed and charged to expense $4.7 million, $4.5 million and $4.0 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, for such plans. The plans” administrators do not provide sufficient information to enable us to determine our share, if any, of
unfunded vested benefits.

NOTE 16-NCNCONSCLIDATED AFFILIATES

JCC. On June 7, 2002, we acquired additional shares of the common stock of JCC, which increased our ownership in JCC to 63% and
required a change of our accounting treatment for our investment in JCC from the equity method to consolidation of JCC in our financial
statements. We began consolidating JCC in our financial results on June 7, 2002. On December 10, 2002, we acquired all remaining
shares of JCC's stock to increase our ownership to 100%. Prior to June 7, 2002, the Company had a minority ownership interest (and
noncontrolling board representation| in JCC, and a subsidiary of the Company managed the casino.

The Company has guaranteed an annual payment obligation of JCC owed to the State of Louisiana of $60 million for the twelve-manth
period ending March 31, 2003, and for each of the subsequent two twelve-month periods. We expect to extend this guarantee for an addi-
tional year to end March 31, 2006.

Due to the filing of bankruptcy by JCC, in fourth quarter 2000 we recorded reserves of $220 million for receivables not expected to
be recovered in JCC's reorganization plan. In first guarter 2001, an additional $2.3 million was recorded to reserve for additional advances
made to JCC during first quarter 2001 and to adjust the reserves for modifications to the approved reorganization plan. We did not record
our share of JCC's operating results in first quarter 2001; however, with the implementation of JCC's reorganization plan, we resumed
recording our share of JCC's results in second quarter 2001 and continued until we began consolidating JCC's results in June 2002

Nztonal Alines, inc. Until June 2001, we had an approximate 48% ownership interest in National Airlines, Inc. {"NAI"), which filed
a voluntary petition for reorganization relief under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in December 2000. In June 2001, we abandoned
all rights to our shares of NA! stock and stock purchase warrants. In fourth quarter 2000, we recorded write-offs and reserves totaling
$39.4 million for our investment in and lcans to NAI and our estimated net exposure under letters of credit on behalf of NAI.

NAI ceased operations in November 2002, after unsuccessfully attempting to restructure in bankruptcy court. We had provided
a letter of credit on behalf of NAI, which we were required to fund in January 2003. We had an agreement with another investor of NA
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whereby that investor was obligated to reimburse us for approximately 56% of amounts that we funded under the letter of credit and that
we had previously funded under anather letter of credit. During second quarter 2001, a subsidiary of the Company filed a fawsuit against
the other investor for breach of contract due to the investor’s failure to reimburse the Company for his share of the $8.6 million we have
paid against the first letter of credit. A judgment was entered in our favor but was appealed by the investor. In fourth quarter 2002,

we reached a settlement with the investor that also included the extinguishment of the investor's potential liability on the letter of credit
that was funded in January 2003, as well as the judgment. We will receive a total of $3.4 million from the investar, $2.4 million of which
was received in October 2002. The remaining amount will be received in two non-interest-bearing installments of $500,000 each over
the next twelve months. As a result of our settlement with the investor and our funding of the letter of credit following NAI's cessation

of operations, we recorded a charge of $6.1 million in fourth quarter 2002.

ComEined Finagnsie! (nformetisn. The following summarized balance sheet and statement of operations information has been compiled
from financial reports for the periods and dates indicated submitted to us by our nonconsalidated affiliates which we accounted for using

the equity method:

20007
National
2002 2001 JCC Airlines Other  Total 2000

Combined Summarized Balance Sheet Information

Current assets $ 885 $ 50,273 § 42,002 § 48,007 $ 3,077 $ 93176
Land, buildings and equipment, net 33,002 167,617 333,931 35,597 34,549 404,077
Other assets 2,00% 50,022 101,334 19,860 8,520 129,714
Total assets 33,072 267,912 477,357 103,464 46,146 626,967
Current liabilities §,762 34,224 110,117 105,695 6,543 222,355
Long-term debt 17,314 122,896 395,412 11,609 18,000 426,021
Other liabilities - 3,607 61,647 2,203 813 64,663
Total liabilities 26,283 160,727 568,176 119,507 25,356 713,039
Net assets $ 12,529 $107,185 $ (90,819) $ (16,043) $20,790 $ (86,072)

Combined Summarized Statements of Operations

Revenues $135,843 $270,229 $261,105 $231,319 $22405 $ 514,829
Operating income (loss) 23,517 {15,403} {90,335) (18,472} (3,222} {112,029)
Extraordinary items - 213,448 - - - -
Net income {loss) 9,330 90,640  (136,589) (22,107) (1,943) (160,639)

{a) 2001 and 2000 are comprised primarily of JCC. Due to the charges we recorded in fourth quarter 2000, we did not record our share of
JCC's operating resufts n first quarter 2001, which included an extraordinary gain arising from the consummation of that entity § bankruptey
reorganization plan.

Our investments in and advances to nonconsolidated affiliates are reflected in our Consclidated Balance Sheets as follows:

2002 2001

Investments in and advances tc nonconsolidated affiliates
Accounted for under the equity method $ 4,339 $78,222
Accounted for at historical cost 177 171
Available-for-sale and recorded at market value 335 1,065

L
&
€91 e
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$ 79,464

in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” we adjust the
carrying value of our available-for-sale equity investments to include unrealized gains or losses. A corresponding adjustment is recorded
in the combination of our stockholders’ equity and deferred income tax accounts.
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{Unaudited)
{In thousands, except per share amounts) First Quarter ~ Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Year
2302"
Revenues $ 974,591 $ 1,021,394 $ 1,124,353 $ 1,095,845 $ 4,133,393
Income from operations 198,088 232,329 228,024 135,880 780,049
Net income/{loss) {E,C08) 88,118 107,242 53,878 235,028
Earnings/{loss) per sharg®
Basic {2.05) £.78 0.91 048 2.2%
Diluted (0.03) 0.73 0.8 0.48 2.07
2e09™
Revenues $ 867,176 $ 873445 $ 999,492 $ 949,676 $ 3,689,789
Income from operations 144,526 141,732 159,767 133,957 579,982
Net income 44,080 47,863 61,923 55,101 208,967
Earnings per share®
Basic 0.38 0.41 0.55 0.50 1.84
Diluted 0.38 0.40 0.54 0.49 1.81

{1) 2002 First Quarter includes a charge of $31.2 million, net of tax benefit of $2.8 million related to a change in accounting principle; Second Quarter includes the financial resufts
of Jazz Casino Company LLC from the date of acquisition of a majority ownership interest on June 7, 2002; and Fourth Quarter includes $5.0 million in pretax charges for write-
downs, reserves and recaveries and a $6.1 million charge for our exposure under a letter of credit issued on behalf of National Airfines, Inc. The first three quarters of 2002 results

have been reclassified to reflect Harveys Colorado as discontinued operations.

(2} 2001 includes $22.5 million in pretax charges for write-downs, reserves and recoveries and $26.2 million of income from disposttions of nonstrategic assets and the settlement
of a contingency related to a former sffiliate. 2001 also includes the financial resufts for Harveys Casing Resorts for periods after its July 31, 2001, date of acquisition. 2001 results

have been reclassified to reflect Harveys Colorado as discontinued operations.

(3] The sum of the quarterly per share amounts may not equal the annual amount reported, as per share amounts are computed independently for each quarter and for the ful year.
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Philip G Satre’

Chairman of the Board
Harrah's Entertainment, Inc.
Director since 1988

Barbara 1. Alenander?
Senior Advisor

UBS Warburg

Director since 2002

Frani: Bioads, Jn*
Senior Managing Director
WaterView Advisors LLC
Director since 2002

Joe {4, Henson?
Private Investor
Director since 1981

Balph Hern'?

Chairman of the Board

First Tennessee National Corporaton
Director since 1995

Gary W, Lovemen'
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Harrah's Entertainment, Inc.
Director since 2000

R. Brad [feriin™**
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Saks Incorporated
Director since 1996

Gary G. [Hichaal?
Private Investor
Director since 2001

Robert &. Kiler®
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Rite Aid Corporation
Director since 1999
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Boale A. Sells™*
Private Investor
Director since 1985%

Eddiz 1. Williams*
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Joint Center for Political
and Economic Studies
Director since 1992*

1 Executive Committee

2 Audit Committee

3 Human Resources Committee

4 Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

*Includes service on Holiday Corporation Board prior to 1390 and/or
The Promus Companies Incorporated Board prior to 1995.
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[RVESTOR INFORMATIO
Corporate Headguarters
One Harrah's Court

Las Vegas, NV 83118

Hailing Lddress
Post Office Box 98905
Las Vegas, NV 89193-8905

Linnya! Nesting Date

Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. will conduct its annual meeting of stockholders at
1a.m. {PDT) May 1, 2003, in the Scintas Showrcom at the Rio All-Suite Hotel &
Casino in Las Vegas.

Form 18-

A stockholder may receive without charge a capy of the Form 10-K Annual
Report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by writing to Investor
Relations at the corporate headguarters address.

Annual Repert Reguests

To request an Annual Report or other financial reports, or to be added
to the Company’s mailing list, please call 1-800-318-0047, or e-mail us at
shareholders@harrahs.com.

Trensier Agent and Registrar

For address changes, account consolidation, registration, lost stock certificates
and other services, contact;

The Bank of New York, Shareholder Relations Department-11E

Church Street Station

PO. Box 11258

New York, NY 10286-1258

1-800-524-4458

www.stockbny.com

Shersholder Lecovnt Assisiance

For additional assistance regarding your account, contact the Shareholder
Services Department by calling 1-800-318-0047 or 901-537-3362, or e-mail

us &t shareholders@harrahs.com.

{nvestor Peletions

The Company maintains an Investor Relations office to assist stockholders and
potential stockholders. Inguiries are welcome, by telephone or letter. Financia!
community information requests should be directed to Investor Relations at the
corporate headquarters address, or by calling 1-800-318-0047, or 702-407-6367,
or e-matl us at shareholders@harrahs.com. Investor infarmation is also available
on the Company's web site at www.harrahs.com.

Hedia Reletisns and Communizations

The Company maintains a Communications Department to assist media

and other outside groups with information about the Company. Inquiries are
welcome by telephone, letter or fax. Media and other non-investor inquiries
should be directed to Corporate Communications at the corporate headguarters,
or by calling 702-407-6529, or e-mail us at mediainfo@harrahs.com.

Homz Pege

Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. maintains a page on the World Wide Web for those
interested in further information or recent news about the Company. Quarterly
financial information, in fieu of quarterly reports to stockholders, is listed here,
as well as facts and figures about the Company. The page can be accessed
through the address www.harrahs.com.

Dividend Information
The Company anticipates paying no cash dividends for the foreseeable future.

Reseristion Informaton

Guests wishing to make reservations at our properties may do so by calling the
following toll-free numbers:

1-800-HARRAHS; 1-800-PLAY-RIO;

1-800-621-0200 (Showboat Atlantic City)

Independent Avditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP

3773 Howard Hughes Parkway
490 North Tower

Las Vegas, NV 89108

STOCHK INFORMATION

Stoclk Listings

Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. common stock trades on the New Yark Stock
Exchange under the ticker symbol HET. The stock is also fisted on the Chicago,
Philadelphia and Pacific regional stock exchanges. Daily trading activity in

the stock and the stock price may be found in the financial section of major
newspapers under "Harrah's”

OQuartarly Stock Information
New York Stock Exchange — Common Stock

Stock Price Per Share
2002 High Low
1st Quarter $44.85 $ 35.61
2nd Quarter 50.95 42.96
3rd Quarter 49.18 40.85
4th Quarter 49,55 31.79
2001 High Low
1st Quarter $32.85 $23.88
2nd Quarter 38.08 28.50
3rd Quarter 35.79 22.93
4th Quarter 37.44 25.51
Stochiholders

As of December 31, 2002, there were 9,543 stockholders of record of Harrah's
Entertainment, Inc.
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The Chairman’s Award s the highest honor Harrah's Entertainment bestows on its employees.

Each year, the award recognizes superior performance in catsgories that support the Company’s
vision. The names listed below are the 2002 Chairman's Award winners representing each property.
From this list, corporate-wide Charman’s Award winners will be selected.

HARRAK'S ATLANTIS CIVY

Bob Woollerton, Community Service
Franklin Urena, Superior Internal Service
Carol Miceli, Superior Guest Service
Bill Larmour, Leadership

Randi Beck, Superior Team Results
Berk Evrensel, Superior Team Results
Jeff Lolli, Superior Team Results
Allan Noble, Superior Team Results
Bill Simpson, Superior Team Resuits
Mark Starrett, Superior Team Results

HARRAN'S AlGKE

Gary Hovey, Leadershlp

Susan Baker, Community Service
Cyndee Jargensen, Superior Internal Service
Pam Daniels, Superior Guest Service
Elsa Free, Supericr Team Results
Melissa Gregorio, Superior Team Results
Christe Montes, Superior Team Results
Michelle Rahn, Superior Team Results
Noelle Lotz, Superior Team Results
Kathy Daly, Superior Team Results

Ron Peters, Superior Team Results
Mearlene Riersan, Superior Team Fesults
Sylvia Mantes, Superior Team Results
Caroline Salsbury, Superior Team Results
Joanne Simms, Superior Team Results
Marilyn Velasco, Superior Team Results
Carale Homar, Superior Team Resdits
Mary Ghostley, Superior Team Results
Dennis Dompke, Superior Team Results
Eddie Qlivo, Superior Team Results
Heidy Camargo, Superior Team Results

BLUFFS BUX: CASIND

Chrystal Herndon, Superior Internal Service
Michael Adams, Leadership

Tess Barry, Community Service

HATRAK'S CAZRTUEER

Goodlow Bark, Superiar Guest Service

Eddie Swimmer, Superior internal Service
Kristin Smith, Community Service

Frances Lettner, Leadership

Marek Pluta, Superior Team Results

Rick Sneed, Facilities, Superior Team Results
James Caldwell, Superior Team Resuits
Juan Owle, Superior Team Results

BB Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. 2002 Annual Report

FARRAE'S COUNGCIL BLUFFS

Micaela Pinales De Mantes, Superior Guest Service
Mark Vacanti, Superior Internal Service

Jim Reber, Leadership

Dave Messersmith, Community Service
Susan Anesi, Superior Team Results
Shawndel Peterson, Superior Team Results
Shelly Jahnke, Superior Team Results

Robert “RZ” Brown, Superior Team Results
Pam Reynolds, Superior Team Results
Chamonieux Figueroa, Superior Team Results
Denise Kiger, Superior Team Results

Randali Lang, Superior Team Results

Gayla Ingold, Superior Team Resuits

Diane Wetzel, Superior Team Results

RARRAN'S BAST CHICAGD

Caro! Eifiot, Superior Guest Service
Nancy Avila, Superior Internal Service
Joseph Scibetta, Leadership

Richard Smolik, Community Service
Tammy Williams, Community Service
Margaret Bourg, Superior Team Results
Mark Sanders, Superior Team Results
Alfonso De La Garza, Superior Team Results
James Zubay, Superior Team Resutts
Becky Andersan, Superiar Team Results

HARRAN S/AARVEVS/BILL'S LANE TAKGE
Annie Sampson, Leadership

Darfene Winkelman, Leadership

Stephanie Bartholomew, Superior Guest Service
Paut Meaney, Superior Guest Service

Cora Perez, Superior Guest Service

Rick Kling, Supericr Internal Service

Phil Dohrn, Superior Internal Service

Pat Winberg, Superior Internal Service

Sonja Miller, Community Service

Frank Greco, Supericr Team Results

Jeanie Chasen, Superior Team Results

Bob Trim, Superior Team Results

Jim Zervos, Superior Team Results

Jay-Dee Ake, Superior Team Results

Bong Estepa, Superior Team Results

Guy Hyder, Superior Team Results

Kevin McGirk, Superior Team Results

Gary Zaskoda, Superior Team Results

HARRAA'S STUET

Bryan Bentley, Leadership

Sue Ward, Community Service

Mary Ann O'Brien, Superior Guest Service
Don Tobin, Superior Internal Service

Lena Horvat, Superior Team Results
Dawn Kirwan, Superior Team Results

FARRAN'S LAIE CHATRLES

Danigel Taylor, Community Service
Jacqueline St. Romain, Leadership

Lori Kascak, Superior Internal Service
Elliot Bushnell, Superior Guest Service
Aubrey Thomas, Superior Team Results
Tosha Skipper, Superior Team Results
Gerard Johnson, Superior Team Results

HARRAH'S LAS VEGAS

Shawn Ritchie, Leadership

Penny Goodwin, Superior Internal Service
Javier Galvez, Superior Guest Service
Harold Johnson, Superior Team Results
Dan Uonites, Superior Team Results
Shawn Ritchie, Superior Team Results
Jim Laughlin, Supsrior Team Results
Terri Lawson, Community Service

HARRAN'S LAUEHLN

Joseph "J.T." Trevino, Superior Guest Service
Ron Ashby, Superior Internal Service

Veronica Guiterrez, Superior Internal Service
Connie Linde, Leadership

Carla Talamantez, Leadership

James Train, Superior Team Results

Benny Ventura, Superior Team Results

Jason St. John, Superior Team Results
James Daughenbaugh, Superior Team Results

HARRAN'S ETRTROLIS

Tommy Winters, Superior Internal Service
Chad Barnhill, Superior Guest Service
Vicki Boren, Community Service

Karen Slak, Leadership

Sheila May, Superior Team Results
Krystal Pierce, Superior Team Results
Cindy Qliver, Superior Team Results
Barbara Bamett, Superior Team Results
Sue Scott, Superior Team Results

Cheryl Cordary Waltmon, Superior Team Results



HRATRAN'S MEW CRIEANVS

Sitton Banks, Superior Guest Service
Carl Wagner, Superior Internal Service
David Pipkin, Leadership

Darrell Pilant, Leadership

Earline Harmey, Community Service
Sandie McNamara, Superior Team Results
Bobbi Mannino, Superior Team Results
Steve Dahle, Superior Team Results
Jocelyn Agnellini, Superior Team Results
Melissa Vergona, Supericr Team Resuilts

HARRAL'S NORTH HANSAS CITY
Ali Hashemy, Leadership

Jim Lash, Superior Internal Service
Nilda Wright, Superior Guest Service
Connie Barkalow, Community Service
Tom Milles, Superior Team Results

Tim Jordan, Superior Team Reslts
John Woodford, Superior Team Resuits
Mike Williams, Superior Team Results

HARRAN'S PRAIRE BAND

Cindy Pauls, Leadership

Ralph Cronkhite, Superior Guest Service
Jim Nicklay, Superior Internal Service
Mike Jackson, Superior Team Results
Farrel Rose, Superior Team Results
Staci Uhl, Supericr Team Resuits

Vickie Galle, Superior Team Results
Jerry Tuckwin, Community Service

HATRAN'S REND

Kerri Garcia, Community Service

Mansural Hague, Superior Internal Guest Service
Jim Webbert, Superior Leadership

Evelyn Frazier, Superior Customer Service

Mary Lee Arentz, Superior Team Results

Karla Kennedy, Superior Team Results

Chris Scott, Superior Team Results

Todd Thompson, Superior Team Results

Adriana Brill, Supericr Team Results

HARRAK'S RINCCN

Ruth Ritchie, Leadership

Uliana Leovao, Superior Guest Service
Natalia Vesey, Superior Intemal Service
Chris Smith, Superior Team Resuits

Vigi Austin, Superior Team Results

Kim Garcia, Superior Team Results
Jeremy Diederich, Superior Team Resuits
Evan Hengel, Superior Team Results

Dan Thiessen, Superior Team Resutlts
Mario Acosta, Superior Team Results
Eric Lewis, Superior Team Results

Skip Carlson, Superior Team Results
Gerardo Quiambao, Superior Team Results
James Flores, Superior Team Results

R0

Bob Yeager, Leadership

Chris Cappas, Superior Internal Service
Dorothy Ruiz, Superior Guest Service
Nancy Thomas, Community Service
Leticia Brotherson, Superior Team Results
John Aveira, Superior Team Results

Vicki Boyd, Superior Team Results
Kristine Rushing, Superior Team Results

SHOWBIAT

Ed Steiger, Superior Internal Service

Tom Pullman, Superior Guest Service
Jackie Eberlin, Leadership

Maria Demaenaski, Superior Team Results
Valerie Harlan, Superior Team Resuits
Vicki Reale-Scaffidi, Superior Team Resuits
Susan Tulino, Superior Team Results

HARRAN'S SHAEVERPORT

Eric Lee, Superior Guest Service

James Donnelly, Superior Internal Service
Bobby Duck, Leadership

Jeffrey Broome, Community Service

HAZRRAN'S ST LIUIS

Linda Whiteley, Leadership

Josh Risley, Superior internal Service
Michael Darrin, Superior Guest Service
Austin Peck, Superior Guest Service
Tom “Lurch” Borman, Community Service
Patrick Cazer, Superior Team Results
Robin Smith, Superior Team Results
Janet Wilson, Superior Team Results
Janet Walker, Superior Team Results
Bob Kesselring, Superior Team Results
Lainie Castle, Superior Team Results

RARRAN'S TUREGA

Phyllis Carmon, Superior Internal Service
Kimberty McCollough, Superior Guest Service
Rodney Vilthard, Leadership

Jonathan Schmitt, Community Service

Rick Alford, Superior Team Results

Tamika Bonds, Superior Team Results

Angela Bell, Superior Team Results

Vicki Reineke, Superior Team Results

Tammy Young, Superior Team Results

HARRAK'S VICKSBURS

Virginia A. Kirschling, Superior Internal Service
Glennial Thomas, Superior Guest Service
Teddy Joe Conrad, Leadership

Jeneatte Calvin, Superior Team Resuits
Valencia Jones, Superior Team Results
Doretha Freneey, Superior Team Results
Berlena McCallum, Superior Team Results
Charles Manuel, Superior Team Results
Daryl Means, Superior Team Results

Ina Taylor, Superior Team Results

HARRAW'S CORFPIRATE

Jeffrey Hoss, Leadership

Shar Sprague, Superior Internal Service
Linda Follosco, Superior Team Results
George Hicks, Superior Team Results
Ellen Lagerback, Superior Team Results
Cheryt Slayton, Superior Team Results
Stuart Themas, Superior Team Results
Sharon Seaman, Superior Team Results
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The Harrah's Code of Commitmert governs the conduct of our business. It's a

public pledge to our guests, our employees and our communities that we will

hanor the trust they have placed in us.

£ commitmant §o oy grests lo promate rosponsible gaming:

= We do not cash welfare or unemployment checks.

© We have a process to honor the requests of customers who wish to be
denied access to our casinos, and that their access to credit, check-cashing
and casinc promotions be restricted.

G We display toll-free helpline numbers for problem gambling in our ads,
brochures and signs, and we grovide financia! support for those helplines.

C We train our employees to understand the signs of problem gambling and
empower them to provide cuszomers with information describing how to
get help.

C We emphasize to our employees that casino gaming is an appropriate
activity for adults only, and require them to be vigilant in their efforts to
prevent individuals under the lega! age from playing at our casinos.

£ commitnent o

provids them eppTrivniiss (o byl ng caresrs:

& We invest in our employees by provndmg excellent pay and valuable benefits,
including health insurance and a retirement plan.

o We are committed to sharing our financial success through programs such
as cash bonuses for frontline employees.

O We encourage professional and personal growth through tuition reimburse-
ment, on-the-job training, caresr development and promotion from within.

O We actively seek and respond to employee opinions on all aspects of their
jobs, from the quality of their supervisors to the quality of our casinos.

fe o
mend o oy communites to |

to live and worl, end (o manct oyr ¢as ! i

C We conduct our business with honesty and integrity, cons:stent with the
highest moral, legal and ethical standards, complying with all applicable
laws and regulations.

C We share our financial success with our communities by donating one
percent of company profits to civic and charitable causes.

O We encourage our employees to volunteer in civic and charitable causes.

 We restrict the placement and content of our advertising and
marketing materials.
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The following trademarks are used in this report to identify the services

of Harralv's Entertainment, Inc., its subsidiaries and &ffiliates: Harrah's®
Showboat® Rio? Harveys?® Players$™ Total Rewards? Total Gold® Total Platinum®
Total Diamond® Rio Seccd? WINet® harrahs.com? 1-800-Harrahs?®

Total Rewards Treasure Hunt™ Wagon Wheel® e-Total Rewards®™

THE PRICE IS RIGHT is & trademark of FremantleMedia Operations, BV.
Based on the FremantleMedia TV program “The Price Is Right.” Licensed
by FremantleMedia Brand Licensing. www.fremantlemedia.com

GAME OF LIFE is a trademark of Hasbro, Inc. © 2001 Hasbro, Inc.
All Rights Reserved.

©2003 Harrah's Entertainment, Inc.

Design: RKC! (Robinson Kurtin Communications! Inc), Photography: Cameron Davidson, Burk Uzzle
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From left to right, David W. Norton, Senior Vice President, Relationship Marketing; Marilyn G. Winn, Senior Vice President, Human Resources; Anthony M. Sanfilippo,
President, Harrah's Western Division; Timoathy S. Stanley, Chief Information Officer; J. Carlos Tolosa, Fresident, Harrah's Eastern Division; Philip G. Satre, Chairman of the
Board; John M. Boushy, Senior Vice President, Operations, Products & Sewvices and Information Technology, Gary W. Loveman, President and Chief Executive Officer;
Timothy J Wilmott, Chief Operating Officer; Janis L. Jones, Senior Vice President of Communications and Government Relations, Stephen H. Brammell, Senfor Vice
President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary; Anthony D. McDuffie, Vice President, Controfler and Chief Accounting Officer; Richard E. Mirman, Chief Marketing
Officer and Senior Vice Presfdent of New Business Development: and Charles L. Atwood, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer.
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